
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, JULY 11, 2022 

 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 

1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS
a. Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grant 

4. NEW BUSINESS
b. District 6 Applicants Presentations (Applicants will present in alphabetical order.)
c. Community Floodprint MOU (NC State Coastal Dynamics Design Lab)
d. Planning Department Discussion (Planning)
e. TAC Appointment (Mayor)
f. Public Comment Period Policy Update (City Clerk)

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET
Invocation (Archbishop Anthony Slater, Tehillah Church Ministries)
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of June 20, 2022

V. PRESENTATIONS 
B. Annual National Night Out Proclamation  
C. Park And Recreation Month Proclamation  
D. Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Jeffrey T. Beeken as an Employee of the 

City of Goldsboro for More Than 28 Years 

VI. PUBLIC HEARING
E. Redistricting of Current Electoral Districts (Planning/Poyner-Spruill)
F. FY2022-2023 Annual Action Plan and Recommended Budget/Public Hearing (Community Relations)
G. Z-14-22 Smith Douglas Homes (CS & R20 to R9) – South side of Ditchbank Rd. between Woodpeck Rd.

and S. NC 111 HWY (Planning) 
H. Z-16-22 Greenleaf Christian Church (GB & R6 to O&I-1) – East side of N. William St. located north of

Orange St. (Planning) 
I. SU-6-22 Indoor Playground – South side of Wayne Memorial Drive, between E. Lockhaven Drive and E. US

70 Hwy (Planning) 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
J. Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Sign a Contract with Atlantic Coast Fire Trucks (ACFT) to

Purchase a 2023 Smeal Rear Mount 75’ Aerial Truck (Fire) 
K. DLCM Loves the 919 Community Fun Day – Temporary Street Closure (Police)
L. Heart of Fun Anniversary – Temporary Street Closure (Police)
M. Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for 1004 Ivy Street to Janice

Johnson (Finance) 



2 

N. Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for 1005 Ivy Street to Janice 
Johnson (Finance)  

O. Establishing a Grant Project Ordinance – Quint Aerial Fire Truck Capital Project Fund (F3111) (Finance) 
P. Operating Budget Amendment FY22-23 (Finance)  
Q. Amendment to the Friends of Seymour Agreement (City Manager)  
R. Departmental Monthly Reports  
 

IX. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION  
S. Z-9-22 Xieu Van Nguyen (GB-CBD) – West side of N. George St. between W. Oak St. and W. Ash St. (Planning) 
T. Z-10-22 The Housing Authority of the City of Goldsboro (R6-O&I-1) – East side of Dupont Cir. Located off 

W. Oak St. (Planning)  
U. Z-11-22 Efinicia Storage (NB-GB) – East side of S. Berkley Blvd. located on the corner at its intersection 

with East St. (Planning) 
V. Z-12-22 Bloom Village (R12-R6) – South side of E. New Hope Rd. between Bear Creek Rd. and Newsome 

Rd. (Planning) 
W. Z-13-22 The Shelton (GB/R16-R9CZ) – South side of E. HWY 70 between Miller’s Chapel Road and E. Ash 

St. Extension (Planning) 
X. SU-4-22 Used Auto Sales – South side of US Hwy 117 S, southwest of the intersection of W. Arrington 

Bridge Rd. and US Hwy 117 S. (Planning) 
Y. SU-5-22 Pedro Baeza Jr. – (Accessory Dwelling) East side of E. Patetown Rd., corner of E. Patetown & W. 

New Hope Rd. (Planning)  
 

X. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

XI. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS  
Z. Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Carnell L. Britt as an Employee of the City 

of Goldsboro for More Than 19 Years 
AA. Resolution Commending and Expressing Appreciation to Thomas E. “Gene” Aycock for Serving on the 

Goldsboro City Council for Ten Years 
 

XII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS  
 

XIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 

XIV. ADJOURN 



JUL AUGJUN SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY

2022 2023

JUN JUL AUG SEP

SIGN MOU

PRESENTATION

PATTERN STUDY OF PAST REPORTS

GEOSPATIAL ANALYSIS + ON-GROUND DATA COLLECTION

DEVELOP GOALS + INITIATIVES

3D MODELING

PRELIMINARY HYDRAULIC MODELING

DEVELOP SCHEMATIC PLANNING + DESIGN ALTERNATIVES

PLAN + HYDRAULIC MODEL REFINEMENT

PHOTO-REALISTIC RENDERING

PLAN PHASING + SCOPING

COST ESTIMATING

GRANT-WRITING

FINAL REPORT DOCUMENTATION

ENGAGEMENT

ENGAGEMENT

ENGAGEMENT

50% REPORT

PHASE ONE: INVENTORY + ANALYSIS

PHASE TWO: PLANNING + DESIGN ALTERNATIVES

PHASE THREE: PROJECT PORTFOLIO

100% REPORT

GO
LD

SB
OR

O 
CO

MM
UN

IT
Y 

FL
OO

DP
RI

NT
:

PR
OJ

EC
T 

CR
IT

IC
AL

 P
AT

H

FORM TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT

w.s. item c









UPDATED BOARD REVIEW AND APPROVAL PROCESS 

INTRODUCTION 

The process that the City of Goldsboro currently requires applications for rezonings, 
conditional rezonings, text amendments, land use plan adoption/amendments, & special-use 
permits is not an incorrect process and has been legally conducted. However, after observing 
the processes currently in place, reviewing the statutory requirements of 160D, and looking at 
how other municipalities in our region handle the processes, staff has concluded that these 
proposed changes would provide for a more efficient process.  

LEGISLATIVE 

Staff is proposing that Legislative hearings be reviewed by the Planning Commission at their 
regularly scheduled meeting which typically falls on the 4th Monday of the month. After 
Planning Commission reviews and makes a recommendation to City Council (staff will present 
the recommendation to Council at the Public Hearing), City Council will hold the legislative 
Public Hearing at the first regularly scheduled meeting of the following month (first Monday of 
the month). City Council will close the Public Hearing and vote on whether to approve the 
proposal at the same meeting, this promotes efficiency due to Council closing the hearing and 
immediately entering deliberation (rezoning, conditional rezoning, text amendment, etc.) 

QUASI-JUDICIAL 

Staff is proposing that Quasi-Judicial hearings have the Public Hearing conducted by City Council 
on the 3rd Monday of the month. After the hearing is closed, Council shall vote on whether to 
approve the Special Use at the same meeting. By this taking place all within the same meeting it 
eliminates the ability for any ex parte communication to take place as well as it eliminates the 
possibility of any information being introduced after the conclusion of the Public Hearing. Staff 
will prepare a written decision to reflect the Public Hearing and deliberation and this decision 
shall be signed at the Council meeting which takes place on the 1st Monday of the month.  

w.s. item d



Staff accepts 
application

Staff advertises for 
Public Hearing

(Public Hearing is for 
Council NOT Planning 

Commission)

Planning Commission conducts 
review and makes 

recommendation to city council 
to approve or deny

Legislative Process
Rezoning, Conditional Rezoning, Text Amendments, Land Use Plan Amendments

Council holds Public Hearing where 
staff presents Planning Commissions 
recommendation. Council will close 
hearing and vote to approve or deny 

request during the same meeting. 
Mayor signs ordianance to approve 

or deny at the same meeting.

Last
Monday

1st 
Monday

(1st council 
meeting of 
next month)



Staff accepts 
application

Staff advertises for 
Public Hearing

Council holds Public Hearing. 
Council will close hearing and 

vote to approve or deny request 
during the same meeting.

Quasi-Judicial Process
Special Use Permits

Staff prepares written 
decision

Council signs written 
decision

(Mayor signs decision)

3rd 
Monday

1st 
Monday

  (2nd   
council 
meeting)

(1st council 
meeting of 
next month)



w.s. f









1 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
JUNE 20, 2022 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Council Chambers, City 
Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on June 20, 2022.   

Call to Order.  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews  
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV (participated via Zoom) 

Absent: Councilman Gene Aycock 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Laura Getz, City Clerk 

 Adoption of the Agenda.  Mayor Ham requested the addition of the District 6 vacancy as item e under new business. 
Councilwoman Jones made a motion to adopt the agenda with the amended change. The motion was seconded by Mayor 
Pro Tem Polack and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the motion.    

New Business. 
Redistricting Presentation. Marshall Hurley and Bill Gilkeson with Poyner Spruill presented the following 

information:  

Item A



2 
 



3 
 

 
 

Council discussed the proposed redistricting options. Council also discussed the upcoming Public Hearing, which 
will be held on July 11, 2022. Council will meet on August 1, 2022 to discuss the options and make final decisions on 
redistricting.  

 
Goldsboro Arts District Strategy and Feasibility. Lance Gloss and Jessica Wilkinson with NCGrowth & SmartUp 

presented the following information.  
 

   

  



4 
 

  

  

  

  

  

  



5 
 

  

  

  

  

  
 
Mr. Gloss shared next steps include the city to convene a group of stakeholders and cement the city’s interest as an 

organization in moving forward if that is council’s wish. He also suggested that Council continue the outreach toward a 
planned document. Mayor Ham discussed the presentation and requested that the presenters come back in July for further 
discussion. Mayor Ham asked about the city moving forward with an Arts District. Erin Fonseca, Downtown Development 
Director shared information regarding the study and asked about Council’s interest in the Arts District.  

 
2022-2023 Annual Action Plan Timeline Review. The Community Relations Department initiated the FY2022-2023 

Annual Action Plan process back in March; however, HUD advised grantees to wait until annual allocations were approved 
and finalized before starting to develop Annual Action Plans for the coming program year. Allocations were published in 
May. 

    
For FY2022-2023, the City of Goldsboro has been allocated $358,697 in CDBG (Community Development Block 

Grant) funds and $280,170 in HOME (Home Investment Partnership Program) funds. The following is a timeline of the 
Annual Action Plan Development process: 

 



6 
 

 ACTIVITY DATE 
PUBLISH NOTICE OF CCRD PUBLIC MEETING ON WEBSITE, FACEBOOK, AND 
GOLDSBORO NEWS-ARGUS & COMMUNITY NEEDS SURVEY PUBLISHED 

6/03/2022 (send notice) 
6/08/2022 (publish date) 

COMMISSION ON COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC MEETING 
(BEFORE PUBLIC REVIEW PERIOD) 

6/21/2022 – 6pm-8pm  

GOLDSBORO NEWS-ARGUS & OTHER MEDIA ADVERTISEMENT (30-DAY PLAN 
DRAFT REVIEW & 7/11/22 PUBLIC HEARING AT COUNCIL MEETING) 

6/24/2022 (send notice) 
6/28/2022 (publish date) 

30 DAY REVIEW PERIOD 6/28/2022 – 7/27/2022 

PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE CITY COUNCIL 7/11/2022 

FY2022 AAP ADOPTION BY CITY COUNCIL 8/1/2022 

FY2022 AAP Submitted to HUD 8/12/2022 

AAP DUE TO HUD 8/16/2022 

 
No action necessary. There was no discussion.  
 
Choice Neighborhoods Grant. Mr. William James, Consultant with Camiros shared they are under contract with the 

Goldsboro Housing Authority to prepare a Choice Neighborhood Grant Application. Mr. James Jones with the Goldsboro 
Housing Authority shared the Housing Authority requested that the City be a co-applicant on the Choice Neighborhood 
Grant. He shared they are targeting the West Haven area. Mr. James shared the following presentation:  

 

  

  

  

  



7 
 

  

  

  

  

  

  



8 
 

  

  

  

  

  

  



9 
 

  

 
 
Mr. James shared that the housing units would include single family, duplex, and some apartments. He shared they 

wanted to bring market rate residents into the neighborhood so it is not all public housing residents (both ownership and 
rental). Mayor Pro Tem Polack asked about residents being displaced.  Mr. James shared there is a right to return for 
residents of the redeveloped housing sites. He shared the development has to be mixed income and the plan is a two year 
planning process. Councilwoman Matthews asked how West Haven was chosen over other neighborhoods in the 
community. Anthony Goodson, CEO of the Goldsboro Housing Authority, shared information on how the West Haven was 
chosen. Council discussed the target area, further expansion, displacement and home ownership. Council continued 
discussion with Mr. James regarding the proposal.  Council and the Manager discussed the timeline of the grant application.  

 
District 6 Seat Vacancy.  
Mayor David Ham read a resignation letter submitted by Councilman Gene Aycock effective June 30, 2022. Mayor 

Pro Tem Polack made a motion to accept the resignation. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and a roll call 
vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the motion.    

 
Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion to accept the resolution. The motion was seconded by Councilmember 

Broadaway. Council discussed the procedure to fill the seat. A roll call vote was conducted. Mayor Ham, Councilwoman 
Jones, Councilman Broadaway, Mayor Pro Tem Polack and Councilmember Gaylor voted for the motion. Councilwoman 
Matthews voted against the motion. The motion passed.         

 
Resolution of the Goldsboro City Council Establishing a Procedure for Filling a Vacant Council Seat. Resolution 
Adopted. Thomas Gene Aycock, the duly elected council member representing District 6 of the City of Goldsboro on its 
City Council has tendered his written resignation dated June 20, 2022 from his seat as the council member representing 
District 6. The City Council of the City of Goldsboro accepted his said resignation during its regularly scheduled meeting of 
June 20, 2022 and as a result hereby declares that the seat for the representation of District 6 is vacant effective June 30, 
2022. As a result of said vacancy the Code of Ordinances and the General Statutes of the State of North Carolina state that 
the Council, by majority vote, shall appoint a qualified candidate to fill said vacancy for the remainder of the term of said 
council member; i.e. until the next general election which will be held in November 7, 2023.  Neither the Code of 
Ordinances nor the General Statutes contain a specific procedure for said appointment, therefore, it is necessary and good 
practice to establish a procedure so the City, all council members and potentially interested candidates, have a procedure, 
which will guide all for the said appointment. It is necessary that a Resolution be enacted to establish procedures for such 
appointment, and that such are attached hereto as Exhibit A setting forth said procedures and is made a part hereof. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council for the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina that: 

  
1. The seat for District 6 of the Goldsboro City Council is vacant effective June 30, 2022, and shall be filled by the 

Council by majority vote. 
2. For the proper and consistent application of the Code of Ordinances and the General Statutes of the State of North 

Carolina for the filling of the vacancy of said seat for District 6 representation on the City Council, procedures for 
any appointment to fill said vacancy should be adopted and that such is necessary for the proper functioning of the 
Council. 

3. Exhibit A attached hereto sets forth said procedure and is hereby adopted as the procedure for the appointment of 
the vacancy of the representative seat for District 6 of the Goldsboro City Council. 

4. This resolution and Exhibit A are hereby adopted and shall be inserted into the official minutes of the City 
Council of Goldsboro. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-57 “RESOLUTION OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL ESTABLISHING A PROCEDURE 
FOR FILLING A VACANT COUNCIL SEAT” 



10 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 
Procedure for Filling Vacant Council Seat for District 6 of the Goldsboro City Council 

 
1. Due to the creation of a councilmember vacancy for District 6, such being effective June 30, 2022, the City Clerk will 

immediately cause the vacant seat to be advertised in The Goldsboro News-Argus and on the City of Goldsboro’s 
Web Site indicating the appointment process and the following eligibility requirements as described in Article VI of 
the North Carolina Constitution and the City of Goldsboro’s Code of Ordinances Section 3:5: 

  
A. Be a qualified voter in the City of Goldsboro. 
B. Be at least 21 years of age and not adjudged a felon not having had their rights restored. 
C. Currently live within the boundaries of District 6 and having done so for at least the past thirty (30) days.   

 
Interested citizens meeting these requirements can pick up the application form from the City Hall Addition at 200 N. 
Center Street, Goldsboro, NC or print the application from the City of Goldsboro’s website at www.goldsboronc.gov. Any 
potential applicant is encouraged to check the District 6 boundaries while at City Hall to make sure they reside within 
District 6 before submitting an application.  Completed applications must be returned to the City Clerk’s office by 5:00 p.m. 
on Thursday, July 7, 2022.  Applications not received by that date will not be considered (placing it in the mail by then does 
not constitute receipt by the City unless it is in the physical custody of the staff of the office of the City Clerk, located within 
the City Manager and Mayor’s offices, 2nd floor, by 5:00 p.m. on Thursday, July 7, 2022).   

 
2. The City Clerk will hold the sealed applications until the deadline date.  After the deadline, the City Manager and City 

Clerk will open the envelopes and verify that each meets the qualifications addressed above.  They will forward 
copies of the contents to each member of the City Council by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, July 8, 2022.  The names of 
applicants shall be released to the news media upon request after the applications have been distributed to the City 
Council.  Applicants are advised that the applications and therefore any information provided on the said applications 
is subject to disclosure upon a proper public records request. 
 

3. The Mayor and City Council at the regular City Council meeting scheduled for July 11, 2022, will hear presentations 
by each qualified applicant.  Each applicant will be given up to ten (10) minutes to make a presentation on their 
qualifications for the office and their vision for Goldsboro.   

 
4. At the August 1, 2022 City Council meeting, the City Council will decide if they have enough information to vote on 

the appointment by motion, second, and majority vote.  If so, the City Council will be provided a ballot listing the 
name of each candidate, and each council member will vote for ONE (1) candidate only. 

 
5. The ballots shall be passed to the City Clerk who will announce the vote by reading aloud each ballot with the name 

and vote of the Mayor and each council member. 
 
6. If any candidate receives at least 4 total votes on the ballots, that person is “appointed” and shall fill the seat. 
 
7. If no candidate gets more than 3 votes, then the 2 applicants receiving the most votes will advance to a second ballot, 

in the same format as the first round. 
 

8. However, if as a result of said initial vote there is a tie that occurs between two or more candidates making it such that 
there are not only 2 applicants with the most votes, then if there is one applicant that receives the most votes, that 
applicant will move to the next round of voting, and the council will then by ballot vote on the remaining other 
applicants so tied and the applicant between those such applicants that receives the highest votes will move to the 
second round of voting. 

 
9. If, however as a result of the first round of voting 3 applicants are tied with two votes each, then a new ballot will be 

issued by the Clerk to the council members with those 3 applicants thereon, the council shall vote, and follow the 
above procedures until there are 2 candidates with the greatest number of votes; BUT if one of those 3 receive at least 
4 votes during that round of voting, then that person would be “appointed” and shall fill the seat. 

 
10.  Each round of balloting and voting shall be conducted exactly as the first round. 
 
11. Once any candidate gets at least 4 votes, that person is the choice, and may be sworn in at the beginning of the next  

Council meeting. 
 
12. At any time, if no candidate has received at least 4 votes, the Council, upon proper motion, second and majority vote, 

may suspend the selection process, and return to further consideration of filling this vacancy at Council’s next 
meeting. 

 
13. Additionally, at any time during the appointment process, upon motion, second and majority vote, the Council may 

vote to delay the vote on appointment to another date; and may re-open the application process to consider other 
interested candidates and shall set application deadlines consistent with the process above. 

 



11 
 

Consent Agenda Review.  Each item was reviewed. 
 

There being no further business, the meeting recessed until 7:00 p.m. 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 

214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on June 20, 2022. 
 
Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 

Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews  
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV (participated via Zoom) 
 

Absent:  Councilman Gene Aycock  
 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Laura Getz, City Clerk 

  
 
Approval of Minutes.  Councilwoman Matthews requested the following amendments to the minutes of the Work 

Session and Regular Meeting of June 6, 2022: removing the address provided during the Public Comment Period and 
changing the citizen name to Henry Battle that spoke in the Public Comment Period. Councilwoman Jones made a motion to 
approve the minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of June 6, 2022, the minutes of the Joint Meeting of June 7, 
2022, and the minutes of the Special Meeting on June 7, 2022 as amended. The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Polack and after a roll call vote the motion was unanimously carried.   

 
Presentations. 
Resolution Expressing Appreciation For Services Rendered By Daren Paige As An Employee Of The City Of 

Goldsboro For More Than 5 Years. Resolution Adopted.  Daren Paige retires on July 1, 2022 as an Operator IV with the 
Public Utilities Department of the City of Goldsboro with more than 5 years of service. Daren began his career on 
September 28, 2016 as an Operator III with the Public Utilities Department. On July 3, 2019, Daren was promoted to 
Operator IV with the Public Utilities Department where he has served until his retirement. Daren has proven himself to be a 
dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of 
the City of Goldsboro. The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of themselves, City 
employees, and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Daren Paige their deep appreciation and gratitude for 
the service rendered by him to the City over the years, and expressed to Daren their very best wishes for success, happiness, 
prosperity, and good health in his future endeavors. This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the 
City of Goldsboro, and shall be in full force and effect from and after this 20th day of June, 2022. 

 
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Polack to adopt the retirement resolution. The motion was seconded by 

Councilwoman Jones and after a roll call vote, the motion was unanimously carried.  Council adopted the following entitled 
Resolution. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-56 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY DAREN 
PAIGE AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 5 YEARS” 

 
HOME ARP Consultant Timeline Review. The City has been allocated $907,913 of HOME-ARP funds by the U.S. 

Department of Housing and Urban Development to assist individuals or households who are homeless, at risk of 
homelessness, and other vulnerable populations.  

 
The City recently executed a contract with Washington Business Dynamics to initiate the planning phase of the 

HOME-ARP process and to develop the HUD required Allocation Plan.  This presentation will highlight the timeline that 
will be carried out by WBD (Washington Business Dynamics).   

 
Felecia Williams, Community Relations Director introduced the President of Washington Business Dynamics, Scott 

Caldwell which presented virtually via Zoom. Mr. Caldwell introduced his team and shared the following presentation: 
 



12 
 

  

  

  

  

 
 

There is no action required and there was no discussion.   
 
National PTSD Awareness Day Proclamation. Read by Councilman Broadaway, the Goldsboro City Council 

proclaimed June 27, 2022 as NATIONAL PTSD AWARENESS DAY in the City of Goldsboro, and called upon our 
citizens and interested groups to observe the day with appropriate ceremonies and activities that promote awareness and 
understanding of PTSD. Ms. Viola Figueroa spoke regarding PTSD and Councilman Broadaway presented the 
proclamation. 

 
Public Hearings.  
Z-9-22 Xieu Van Nguyen (GB-CBD) – West side of N. George St. between W. Oak St. and W. Ash St. 

ADDRESS: 311 N. George St. PARCEL #: 2599872447. Public Hearing Held. The applicant is requesting a change of 



13 
 

zone for the subject property from the General Business (GB) Zoning District to the Central Business District (CBD) 
Zoning District. The purpose of the Central Business District is to maintain and strengthen the concentration of commercial, 
service, residential and institutional uses that serve the entire community.  

 
Frontage: 70 ft. (N George St.)  
Area: 23,522 sq. ft. or 0.54 acres 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING: 
North:  General Business (GB) 
South: Central Business District (CBD) 
East: General Business (GB)/Central Business District (CBD) 
West: Office and Institutional (O & I-1) 
 

The property currently consists of a structure that previously utilized its first floor for commercial retail.  
 

The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the Mixed-Use Downtown designation. The Central Business District 
(CBD) is listed as a corresponding and preferred zoning district for the Mixed-Use Downtown designated area. This district 
encourages a mix of high intensity, pedestrian oriented uses compatibly designed and arranged around the existing compact 
core.  
 
This is a conventional rezoning and all potential uses allowed in the Central Business District (CBD) as well as the proposed 
rezonings compatibility with the Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan are to be considered. Any use of the property 
will be required to comply with the Goldsboro Unified Development Ordinance. 

 
Subject property is located within the City limits of Goldsboro.  As such, City water and sewer are available to serve the 
property.  The property is not located within a special flood hazard area.      

 
No action necessary. The Planning Commission will have a recommendation for the Council’s meeting on July 11, 2022. 

 
Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing and no one spoke. The Public Hearing was closed. 

 
Z-10-22 The Housing Authority of City of Goldsboro (R6-O&l-1) – East side of Dupont Cir. Located off W. 

Oak St. Address: 138 Dupont Cir. Parcel #: 2599687977 (portion of parcel proposed to be rezoned). Public Hearing 
Held. The applicant is requesting a change of zone for the subject property from the Residential (R-6) Zoning District to the 
Office & Institutional (O&I-1) Zoning District. The purpose of the Office & Institutional district is to provide for the 
development of office and community institutions that have similar development characteristics and require locations close 
to residential and commercial uses. This district discourages commercial uses and forbids industrial uses.  

      
Frontage:  To be determined by survey  
Area:  To be determined by survey  
 

The portion proposed to be rezoned will be surrounded by Residential (R-6) zoning on all sides.  
 

The portion proposed to be rezoned currently consists of a vacant office building.  
 

The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the High-Density Residential designation. The corresponding zoning 
districts for the High-Density Residential designation are as follows; Residential (R-6), Residential (RM-8), Residential (R-
9) and Residential (R-12). This district was designated based off existing residential land uses, residential development 
patterns, and existing infrastructure or where plans exist to extend infrastructure. The proposed Office & Institutional (O&I-
1) Zoning District is not a corresponding zoning district with the High-Density Residential designation.  

 
This is a conventional rezoning and all potential uses allowed in the Office & Institutional (O&I-1) Zoning District, as well 
as the proposed rezonings compatibility with the Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan are to be considered. Any use of 
the property will be required to comply with the Goldsboro Unified Development Ordinance. 

 
Subject property is located within the City limits of Goldsboro.  As such, City water and sewer are available to serve the 
property.  The property is not located within a special flood hazard area.      

 
No action necessary. The Planning Commission will have a recommendation for the Council’s meeting on July 11, 2022. 

 
Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing and no one spoke. The Public Hearing was closed. 

 
Z-11-22 Anthony C Camaioni (NB-GB) – East side of S. Berkley Blvd. located on the corner at its intersection 

with East St. Address: 200 S. Berkley Blvd. Parcel #: 3519103763. Public Hearing Held.  The applicant is requesting a 
change of zone for the subject property from the Neighborhood Business (NB) Zoning District to the General Business (GB) 
Zoning District. The purpose of the General Business (GB) Zoning District is to accommodate the widest range of uses 
providing general goods and services to the community. The main difference in the purpose and intent of the Neighborhood 
Business District in comparison to the General Business District is that where the NB district is designed to provide services 



14 
 

and commercial use to the immediate surrounding neighborhoods, the GB district is designed to provide a wider range of 
services and commercial use to the entire community.  

     
Frontage: 90.78 ft. (S. Berkley Blvd.) 242 ft. (East St.) 
Area: 21,344 sq. ft. or 0.49 acres 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING: 
North:  Neighborhood Business (NB)/General Business (GB) 
South: Neighborhood Business (NB)/General Business (GB) 
East: Neighborhood Business (NB)/General Business (GB) 
West: General Business (GB)/Shopping Center (SC) 
 

The property currently consists of a residential duplex. 
 

The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the Mixed-Use 1 designation. The Mixed-Use 1 designations 
corresponding zoning districts are as follows: Office Residence (OR), Office & Institutional (O&I-1), Office & Institutional 
(O&I-2) and Neighborhood Business (NB). This category is designed to have a mixture of uses and have minimum impact 
on an adjacent area. Due to the parcel’s frontage on S. Berkley Blvd., the impact on surrounding areas should be minimal 
due to the easy accessibility of the property located on a major thoroughfare within the City.  

 
This is a conventional rezoning and all potential uses allowed in the General Business District (GB) as well as the proposed 
rezonings compatibility with the Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan are to be considered. Any use of the property 
will be required to comply with the Goldsboro Unified Development Ordinance. 

 
Subject property is located within the City limits of Goldsboro.  As such, City water and sewer are available to serve the 
property.  The property is not located within a special flood hazard area.      

 
No action necessary. The Planning Commission will have a recommendation for the Council’s meeting on July 11, 2022. 

 
Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing and no one spoke. The Public Hearing was closed. 

 
Z-12-22 John and Nancy McNeill (R12-R6) – South side of E. New Hope Rd. between Bear Creek Rd. and 

Newsome Rd. Address:  E. New Hope Rd. Parcel #:  3529-75-9880. Public Hearing Held.  The subject property is 
currently vacant and undeveloped. 

 
Frontage: Approximately 60ft. (E. New Hope Rd.) 
  Approximately 15ft. (E. New Hope Rd.) 
Area: 437,488 sq. ft. or 10.05 acres 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING:   
North:  Residential (R16); 
South: Residential (R12RM-NC); 
East: Residential (R12/R6/R6RM-NC), Neighborhood Business (NB/NBRM-NC), Residential-Manufactured 

(RM9); and 
West: Residential (R12) 
 

The applicant requests to rezone the property from Residential (R12) to Residential (R6). If rezoned, the applicant will be 
required to meet the regulations of the Residential (R6) zoning district.  The purpose of the Residential (R6) zoning district 
is to accommodate both single and multifamily residential uses and to prohibit all activities of a commercial nature.    

 
The City’s Land Use Plan recommends Medium-Density Residential development for the property.   According to the Plan, 
higher residential densities should be encouraged where “infill” development or development of vacant parcels accessible to 
City water and sewer services exist. 

 
The subject property is not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area.  City water and sewer utilities are available within 1,000 
ft. of the subject property along E. New Hope Rd. 

 
The subject property is located outside of the corporate limits of the City of Goldsboro.  If the property is developed for 
future use, the owner/developer will be required to annex the property into the City limits. 

 
No action necessary. The Planning Commission will have a recommendation for Goldsboro City Council at their regularly 
scheduled meeting on July 11, 2022. 

 
Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing and the following people spoke: 

 
1. Wilson Mewborn spoke against the rezoning request. 
2. Eric Johnson, speaking on behalf of the group requesting the zoning change, spoke for the rezoning request. 
3. Michael Ellis spoke against the rezoning request.  



15 
 

4. Betty McNeill requested the zoning map be changed to remove Leonard Lane.  
5. John McNeill spoke for the rezoning request. 

 
No one else spoke and the Public Hearing was closed. 

 
Z-13-22 The Shelton (GB/R16-R9CZ) – South side of E. New Hope Rd. between Bear Creek Rd. and Newsome 

Rd. Address: McClain St. Parcel#:  3528-16-0869, 3528-16-2497 (Portion of). Public Hearing Held. The subject 
property is currently vacant and undeveloped. 

 
Frontage: Approximately 60ft. (E. New Hope Rd.) 
  Approximately 15ft. (E. New Hope Rd.) 
Area: 437,488 sq. ft. or 10.05 acres 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING:   
North:  Residential (R16); 
South: Residential (R12RM-NC); 
East: Residential (R12/R6/R6RM-NC), Neighborhood Business (NB/NBRM-NC), Residential-Manufactured 

(RM9); and 
West: Residential (R12) 
 

The applicant requests to rezone the property from Residential (R12) to Residential (R6). If rezoned, the applicant will be 
required to meet the regulations of the Residential (R6) zoning district.  The purpose of the Residential (R6) zoning district 
is to accommodate both single and multifamily residential uses and to prohibit all activities of a commercial nature.  Site 
and landscape plans will be required and approved by City officials before construction permits can be issued in the future. 

 
The City’s Land Use Plan recommends Commercial development for all of Parcel 3528-16-0869 and most of Parcel #3528-
16-2497.  A small portion of Parcel #3528-16-2497 is recommended for Industrial Development.   

 
The subject property is not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area.  City water and sewer utilities are available within 1,000 
ft. of the subject property along E. New Hope Rd. 

 
The subject property is located outside of the corporate limits of the City of Goldsboro.  If the property is developed for 
future use, the owner/developer will be required to annex the property into the City limits. 

 
Base officials have been contacted regarding the conditional zoning proposal.  Because the subject properties fall within the 
65-69 DNL noise overlay zone, residential use in this area is discouraged.  However, if the City determines that there is a 
community need for housing in the area, measures to achieve an outdoor to indoor noise level reduction (NLR) of at least 25 
decibels should be required. 

 
No action necessary. The Planning Commission will have a recommendation for Goldsboro City Council at their regularly 
scheduled meeting on July 11, 2022. 

 
Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing and no one spoke. The Public Hearing was closed. 

 
SU-4-22 Used Auto Sales – South side of US Hwy 117 S, southwest of the intersection of W. Arrington Bridge 

Rd. and US Hwy 117 S. Address: 1924 US Hwy 117 S. Parcel #: 2598332845.  Public Hearing Held. After being 
properly sworn in, Austin Brinkley, Assistant Planning Director presented the following item. 
 
The applicant requests a Special Use Permit for the operation of a used auto sales lot located in the General Industry (I-2) 
zoning district.   

 
According to the City’s Unified Development Code, used automobile sales is a permitted use in the General Industry (I-2) 
zoning district only after the obtainment of a Special Use Permit approved by City Council. 

 
Frontage:  87 ft.   
Area:  0.59 Acres 
Zoning:    General Industry (I-2) 
 

Currently, the existing lot is vacant and undeveloped. 
 

Approval criteria of used automobile sales requiring a special use permit from Goldsboro City Council are as follows: 
1. The minimum lot area is 15,000 sq. ft. 
2. The minimum lot frontage and width shall be 100 ft., unless the cars for sale are driven to the site or delivered by 

nothing larger than a two-car carrier. If either of these conditions is met, there shall be no minimum lot frontage 
or width. 

3. Parking of used vehicles or customer vehicles shall not be allowed within the required street yard landscape area. 
4. No vehicles for sale shall be parked within 20 ft. of residentially-zoned property. 



16 
 

5. All vehicular display areas shall be improved with approved surfaces, curb and gutter in accordance with the 
City’s UDO. 

 
The applicant has submitted a preliminary site plan which indicates compliance with the above-listed approval criteria for 
used automobile sales as a special-use in the General Industry (I-2) zoning district. 

 
In addition, the site plan shows an existing modular style office building of approximately 200 sq. ft. proposed for use as an 
office for automobile sales, record-keeping, and a public restroom. Applicant will be required to ensure the structure meets 
North Carolina State Commercial Building Code standards.   

 
Access to the site will be provided directly from US Hwy 117 S by an existing 25 ft. wide gravel access drive, which is to be 
paved.  

 
Parking for the site requires 1 space per employee and 5 customer spaces.  A total of 7 paved parking spaces are proposed to 
include 1 handicap accessible space. 

 
External sidewalks are required for the site in accordance with the City’s UDO, or a fee in lieu of will be required instead. 

 
Interconnectivity currently exists with the Circle K gas station to the east of the property. 

 
City water is available to serve the subject property and sewer is served by a septic system. The property is located within a 
100-year special flood hazard area. Since the proposed disturbed area is less than .5 acres, City Engineering will not require 
drainage plans. 

 
A maple tree has been shown along the frontage of the property to serve as required street trees for the site.  Due to existing 
site conditions, landscape buffer yards have not been shown on the preliminary site plan. City Planning will ensure that all 
buffer yard standards are satisfied through the site plan review process.  

 
Collection has been identified on the submitted plans as being bi-weekly by a private carrier. Commercial dumpsters have 
not been proposed at this time. City Planning will ensure proper screening of refuse collection areas if proposed in the 
future.   
 
No action necessary.  The Planning Commission will have a recommendation for City Council at the July 11, 2022 Council 
meeting. 

 
Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing and no one spoke. The Public Hearing was closed. 

 
SU-5-22 Pedro Baeza Jr. – (Accessory Dwelling) East side of E. Patetown Rd., corner of E. Patetown & W. New 

Hope Rd. Address: 1100 E. Patetown Rd. Parcel #: 3600874938. Public Hearing Held. After being properly sworn in, 
Kenny Talton, Planning Director presented the following item. 
 
The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for an existing accessory structure to be converted into an accessory 
dwelling. This property is within the Residential 16 (R-16) Zoning District.   

             
According to the City’s Unified Development Code, Table 5.4 Permitted Uses and Section 5.5.4 Special Use Specific 
Regulations, Accessory Dwellings & Apartments are permitted as a Special Use in the Residential (R-16) Zoning District, 
provided the City Council votes to issue the permit after the quasi-judicial hearing takes place.  

  
Frontage:  210 ft. (E. Patetown) 202 ft. (W. New Hope) 
Area:    53,143 sq. ft. or 1.22 acres 
Zoning:    Residential 16 (R-16) 
  

The structure is currently utilized as a residential accessory structure.   
 

According to the Unified Development Code, a Special Use Permit is required to convert the existing accessory structure 
into an accessory dwelling. The structure shall meet all approval criteria listed in the UDO. The structure will be required to 
comply with the North Carolina State Building Code.  

 
Access to the site will be provided from E. Patetown Rd.   

 
The use of an accessory dwelling requires 1 parking space, there is adequate area in the existing driveway to accommodate 
the 1 required space.  

 
There are no landscaping requirements. 

 
City water and sewer are available to serve the site.  The site is not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area.   

  
No action necessary.  The Planning Commission will have a recommendation for the Council’s meeting on July 11, 2022. 



17 
 

 
Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing and no one spoke. The Public Hearing was closed. 
 
Mayor Ham excused the Planning Commission members. 

 
Public Comment Period. Mayor Ham opened the public comment period. The following people spoke:  

1. Willie Baptiste shared comments regarding a neighboring property. Kenny Talton, Planning Director shared 
an update on the issue. 

2. Carl Martin shared comments regarding the Parks and Recreation monthly report, sanitation, and city staff 
retention.  

3. Henry Battle shared comments regarding the properties he owns in the city and an issue with the Black Elks 
Lodge. Mayor Ham and Councilwoman Jones addressed the issues with the Black Elks Lodge.   

 
No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.  
 
Consent Agenda – Approved as Recommended. City Manager Tim Salmon presented the Consent Agenda.  All 

items were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a 
Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered 
separately. In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call vote. 
Councilwoman Matthews and Councilwoman Jones shared comments regarding the budget. Mayor Pro Tem Polack moved 
the items on the Consent Agenda, Items L - O be approved as recommended by the City Manager and staff.  The motion 
was seconded by Councilman Broadaway. A roll call vote was conducted. Mayor Ham, Mayor Pro Tem Polack, 
Councilman Broadaway, and Councilman Gaylor voted for the motion. Councilwoman Jones and Councilwoman Matthews 
voted against the motion. The motion passed.   

       
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows:  
 

Resolution Establishing a Utility Capital Reserve Fund (6110). Resolution Adopted. North Carolina General 
Statute §159-18 authorizes any local government to establish and maintain a capital reserve fund for any purpose for which 
it may issue bonds.   

  
North Carolina General Statute §159-48 outlines the purposes for which bonds may be issued. 

  
The City Manager’s proposed adopted budget for FY22-23 recommends the funding of a capital reserve fund to finance 
future water and sewer system capital needs.  Staff has prepared the resolution to create and maintain the Utility Capital 
Reserve Fund for Council approval.  Upon enactment of the FY22-23 budget on July 1, 2022, the Finance staff will prepare 
entries to transfer the appropriations to the Utility Capital Reserve on a quarterly basis. 
This Utility Capital Reserve fund must be used for water and sewer capital purchases as stated in the resolution.  The 
Council cannot change the use of the funds once the moneys have been transferred over to the fund. When it is time to fund 
projects with Utility Capital Reserve, a budget ordinance amendment will be prepared to transfer out from the Utility 
Capital Reserve Fund to a capital project fund or back to the Utility Fund depending on where the capital project is 
budgeted.    

 
It was recommended that City Council adopt the following entitled resolution to establish and maintain a Utility Capital 
Reserve Fund. Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Broadaway (4 Ayes: 2 Nays)  

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-58“A RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH AND MAINTAIN A UTILITY CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 
FOR THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO” 

 
Operating Budget Amendment FY21-22. Ordinance Adopted. Council adopted the FY21-22 operating budget at 

the June 18, 2021 Council meeting.  The operating annual budget may be amended from time to time in order to adjust to 
current operating conditions. 

 
Please find attached an ordinance amending the annual operating budget for fiscal year 2022. 

 
Paramount Theater 
Ticket sales for the Paramount’s Performance Series have well outpaced the budgeted amount.  It is necessary to 

appropriate an additional $24,000 for the Performance Series expenditures in order to pay out the net of the ticket proceeds 
to the performing entity.  The revenue from the rental ticket sales was budgeted at $208,420 but actual revenue received is 
$242,736 through May so there is sufficient revenue for the expenditure appropriation.  

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled FY21-22 Operating Budget amendment for the General Fund. 
Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Broadaway (4 Ayes: 2 Nays) 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-30 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2021-22 FISCAL YEAR” 

 



18 
 

Adoption of the Annual Operating Budget Ordinance for Fiscal Year 2022-23 and Resolution for Utility Fees and 
Charges. Resolution and Ordinance Adopted. G.S. §159-13 requires that the governing board adopt a budget ordinance 
prior to July 1 to make appropriations and levy the taxes for the budget year.  Specifically, the Budget Ordinance establishes 
the property tax rate and any special taxes which may be levied during a fiscal year, such as the Special Downtown Municipal 
District Tax.  The intention of a city to issue licenses upon businesses, trades and professions is also described within the 
contents of this document. 

 
The major emphasis of a Budget Ordinance is to identify by fund the estimated revenues a municipality anticipates to collect 
during a fiscal year and to delineate by fund, department, and activity how these monies shall be appropriated.  The Budget 
Ordinance may also describe any special authorizations granted to the Budget Officer.  

 
Passage of the Budget Ordinance is an annual occurrence.  No budget for the fiscal year can be implemented without the 
formal adoption of the provisions of this document.  The Budget Ordinance reflects the decisions made by the City Council 
during its budget reviews and discussion.  The Budget Ordinance assures compliance with all pertinent State Fiscal laws.  It 
must show an exact balance between revenues and expenditures.  If circumstances do not warrant the adoption of this 
document by the prescribed date, an interim budget must be approved by the governing body.  The specific authorizations 
granted to the Budget Officer are the same as were delegated in Fiscal Year 2021-22 that relate to the reallocation of 
departmental appropriations, interdepartmental transfers, and inter-fund loans and transfers.  Also, the Finance Director and 
Assistant Finance Director are authorized to sign all pre-audit certifications for budgetary appropriations as required by G.S. 
159-28.  

 
 Council met with staff on several occasions to discuss the FY2022-23 recommended budget.  During those sessions, Council 

discussed increases to water and sewer rates by 20% increase in solid waste fees, changes to parks and recreation fees based 
on residency, and use of American Rescue Plan Funds in the operating budgets.  Included is the newly created Utility Capital 
Reserve Fund to be used to accumulate funds necessary for many water and sewer infrastructure projects needed by our utility. 

 
REVENUE HIGHLIGHTS 
The proposed adopted budget presented here reflects the following revenue changes: 
• General Fund - The property tax rate will remain $0.68 cents per $100 valuation.  The property tax was increased in 

FY2021-22 by 3 cents to help build fund balance, and was the first property tax increase since FY2008-09.  The 
property tax for the Downtown Municipal Service District remains the same at $0.235 per $100 valuation. 

• General Fund – Solid Waste  There is an increase in residential solid waste fee from $22.00 to $25.00 per month.  
There is an increase in commercial solid waste from $40.50 to $45.00 per month. 

• General Fund – Parks and Recreation  There is a change in the fee structure to resident and non-resident. 
• General Fund – Golf Friday will now be considered a weekend-holiday rate.  
• Utility Fund – There is a  20% increase in water and sewer rates.  This will be effective with bills rendered on or after 

August 1, 2022. 
• Fund balance appropriation – There is no appropriation of fund balance presented in the proposed adopted budget. 
 
EXPENDITURE HIGHLIGHTS 

The proposed adopted budget presented here reflects the following expenditure highlights: 
 

General Fund-Agency Support 
An allocation of $196,125.00 has been established in Agency Support.  Council will need to determine the specific 
allocations.  Once those decisions are made, staff will bring a budget amendment back to Council to approve the line 
item appropriation by agency.  This is to comply with Senate Bill 473, Enhance Local Government Transparency Act, 
signed into law December 9, 2021.  Separate budget amendments will be presented for each agency so Council serving 
on the board or commission will be able to recuse themselves from voting on the funding. 

 
 Position Allocation 

 FTE 
Count 

FY21-22 Adopted 482 
Elected Officials 7 
Added During FY22 7 
FY21-22 Adjusted Adopted 496 
  
FY22-23 Manager Recommended 488 
Elected Officials 7 
FY22-23 Proposed Adopted 495 

 
No new full time positions were recommended.  One full-time position in Parks & Recreation is abolished with the adopted 
budget reducing the FTE’s from 496 to 495.  There are 15 permanent part-time employees. 

 
 Salaries & Benefits 
 Included in the FY2022-23 proposed adopted budget is a 5% cost of living adjustment for all full-time and permanent 

part-time employees that are employed on June 29, 2022. The raise will be effective with biweekly payroll #14 which 
will be paid on July 15th.  The proposed adopted budget also includes the approved Police and Fire department pay plans 
as previously approved by Council.  There is no bonus budgeted.  The deferred compensation plan 401(k) remains at 5% 
for sworn officers and 4% for all other employees.  LGERS retirement contribution for employees remains at 6%, and 
employer contributions are set at 12.15% non-LEO and 13.04% LEO. 

  
 



19 
 

 Contingency 
 Contingency appropriations are as follows: 
 

 Fund Amount 
General Fund 1,075,365 
Downtown District Fund 4,800 
Utility Fund 1,246,323 
Occupancy Tax Fund 17,480 
Total Contingency Appropriation 2,343,968 

 
 As required by G.S. §159-11, the Budget Officer submitted to the governing board a balanced recommended budget with the 

required components on May 16, 2022, ahead of the statutory deadline of  June 1, 2022.  The filing of the recommended 
budget was also properly advertised in the Goldsboro-News Argus on May 14, 2022, and an electronic copy of the budget 
delivered to the City Clerk as well as made available online on the City’s website.  Further, the Council conducted a public 
hearing on June 6, 2022 at the 7:00 pm meeting, and conducted budget work sessions on June 6th and 7th.  Finally, there has 
been at least 10 days between the presentation of the recommended budget (May 16th) and the tentative adoption of the budget 
ordinance (June 20th). 

 
Summary of FY2022-23 Budget 

 

 
A published copy of the final Adopted Budget for FY2022-23 will be produced and furnished to Council and available on our 
website as soon as possible. 

 
 It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Budget Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2022-23 and adopt the 
following entitled resolution incorporating the 20% increase in water and sewer rates to be in full force and effect on all 
billings on or after August 1, 2022. Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Broadaway (4 Ayes: 2 Nays) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-31 “ANNUAL BUDGET ORDINANCE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023” 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-59 “RESOLUTION AMENDING THE WATER RATES AND SANITARY SEWER RATES FOR 
THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO” 
 

Departmental Monthly Reports. Accepted as information. The various departmental reports for May 2022 were 
submitted for Council approval. It was recommended that Council accept the reports as information. Consent Agenda 
Approval. Polack/Broadaway (4 Ayes: 2 Nays) 
 

End of Consent Agenda. 
 
City Manager’s Report. Tim Salmon thanked Council and city departments for their support of the Juneteenth event 

on June 18. He shared the Commission on Community Relations will meet on June 21 at 6:00 pm to receive public input on 
the FY22-23 Annual Action Plan. A public meeting will be held on June 23 at the Herman Park Center to discuss the future 
of Ash Street from George St. to Berkeley Blvd. He also shared that the Seymour Johnson Air Force Base fireworks can be 
viewed on June 30 from the Bryan Multi Sport Complex.  

  
Ceremonial Documents. 
Juneteenth Proclamation. Read by Mayor Ham, the Goldsboro City Council proclaimed June 19, 2022 as 

JUNETEENTH in the City of Goldsboro and recognized that the observance of the end of slavery is part of the history and 
heritage of the United States, and supports the continued nationwide celebration of Juneteenth to provide an opportunity for 
citizens to learn more about the past and to better understand the experiences that have shaped the United States.  

 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Comments. 
Councilwoman Jones shared concerns regarding crime and shared that the City needs the public’s help; if you see 

something that’s not right, say something. She shared she was pleased with the Juneteenth events around Goldsboro and was 
asked to sing at the Wayne County Museum’s event. She also shared she is working on resources to assist the elderly to 
make sure they are able to get their prescriptions.    

 
Councilman Broadaway shared that when Councilman Aycock resigned; Goldsboro lost a good man. He shared that 

Councilman Aycock served his city and his district admirably and will be missed.    
 

SUMMARY REVENUES APPROPRIATIONS

General Fund 49,265,445$               49,265,445                 
Stormwater Fund 1,918,628                   1,918,628                   
Utility Fund 24,926,466                 24,926,466                 
Downtown Special District Fund 96,387                       96,387                       
Occupancy Tax Fund 1,191,450                   1,191,450                   
General Fund Capital Reserve 1,000                         1,000                         
Utility Fund Capital Reserve 1,506,129                   1,506,129                   

TOTAL BUDGET FY22-23 78,905,505$            78,905,505$            



ON

N

O

o

U

b

o

N

N

0 +' 3 °> 

0ani

o

o

M

03

ccl

N

cd

O

O

U

to
C 

b

O

16to
Ln

y

co

x

cqj

en

b

U

U) a 

to

ry)

cd

00

a

NCJ

U, 

o

O

v 

N

to

xi

U

U

U

O

o

U

a 

m

o

bn

v

g

a

cq3

7d

o

2

to

o

U

U

Fi

0

co

d

U

co

U

pU

U

pCJ

c

m

bOA

ti

O

b

H

cz

3

yCU

V

U

U

O

N

y

co

ICA

ON

N

O

o

U

ON



Item B



Item C



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 60

RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION

FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY JEFFREY T. BEEKEN

AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO

FOR MORE THAN 28 YEARS

WHEREAS, Jeffrey T. Beeken retires on August 1, 2022 as a Police Sergeant ( SEU) with the City of
Goldsboro Police Department with more than 28 years of service; and

WHEREAS, Jeffrey began his career on January 8, 1990 as a Police Officer with the City of Goldsboro
Police Department; and

WHEREAS, on December 6, 1992, Jeffrey was transitioned to a Police K-9 officer with the City of
Goldsboro Police Department; and

WHEREAS, on June 27, 2000, Jeffrey resigned, and on June 12, 2004 was rehired as a Police Officer with
the City of Goldsboro Police Department; and

WHEREAS, on October 20, 2011, Jeffrey was promoted to Police Investigator with the City of
Goldsboro Police Department; and

WHEREAS, on April 16, 2014, Jeffrey was promoted to Sergeant ( SEU) with the City of Goldsboro
Police Department where he has served until his retirement; and

WHEREAS, Jeffrey has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained
the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of themselves, 
City employees, and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Jeffrey T. Beeken their deep
appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina that: 

1. We express to Jeffrey our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity, and good health in
his future endeavors. 

2. This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall
be in full force and effect from and after this

11th

day of July, 2022. 

avid Ham, Mayor

Item D



E



F





COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND DEVELOPMENT 

ANNUAL ACTION PLAN (DRAFT) 
PROGRAM YEAR 2022-2023 

Public Review Period: June 29, 2022 – July 28, 2022 
Public Hearing: July 11, 2022 @ 7:00pm 

City of Goldsboro City Hall, 214 N. Center Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530 

2022 ANNUAL ACTION PLAN (DRAFT) – CITY OF GOLDSBORO 1 



 2022-2023 ANNUAL ACTION PLAN – Represents 3rd Year of Consolidated 
Plan

 Continues to Address Priorities Identified In Consolidated Plan

 Attainable Housing Development & Preservation (through New 
Construction, Acquisition, and/or Rehabilitation Activities)

 Neighborhood Stabilization (through preservation/creation of affordable 
housing and attracting investments for new businesses that can create jobs, 
business expansion, and business development within designated Opportunity 
Zones, Census Tracts 15,18,19)

 Non-Housing Community Development (through providing and expanding 
essential services, such as education, employment, training programs, health 
services, homeless services, to name a few, as well as improving public 
infrastructure to support low-to-moderate income individuals and families)

 Equity & Affirmatively Furthering Far Housing (through reducing barriers to 
fair housing choice and fostering equity in neighborhoods) 



FY 2022- 2023 AAP CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
Activity Date Scheduled/Held

Public Meeting Notice – Commission on 
Community Relations & Development

Published: 
• Goldsboro News-Argus - 6/8/2022

Community Needs Assessment Survey Published:
• City Website - 6/8/2022 
• City Facebook - 6/9/2022 
• Goldsboro Daily News - 6/17/2022 (will run for 30 

days) 

Public Meeting Commission on Community Relations & 
Development regular meeting - 6/21/2022

Public Hearing Notice - Public Hearing & AAP 30-
Day Public Review/Comment Period

Published:
• Goldsboro News-Argus - 6/29/2022 
• City Website - 6/29/2022 

30-Day Public Review & Comment Period 

Draft Available for Public Review –
6/29/2022 thru 7/28/2022 

Locations Available:
• City Website & City Facebook
• Goldsboro City Hall
• Public Library
• Goldsboro Housing Authority

Public Hearing Goldsboro City Council regular meeting –
7/11/2022 @ 7pm



FY 2022- 2023 AAP CITIZEN INPUT  
AS OF 6/29/2022

TYPE COMMENTS
Public Meeting  - Commission on Community 
Relations & Development (6/21/2022)

In Attendance:  13
Comments:  3

Comment 1: Funding should be geared 
towards assisting homeless population 

Comment 2: More emphasis should be 
placed on Housing Rehabilitation, increase 
Homeownership/Down Payment Assistance, 
City should consider developing an Affordable 
Housing Commission, City should consider 
developing an Affordable Housing Strategic 
Plan 

Comment 3: More focus should be on 
community outreach to ensure all are 
engaged in the planning process 



FY 2022- 2023 AAP CITIZEN INPUT (continued)
AS OF 7/07/2022

TYPE
Community Needs Assessment Survey 

• Distributed via City website and available in public locations

• Respondents asked to rank from highest to lowest priority within the following 
priority categories

- Decent & Affordable Housing Priorities 
- Homelessness Priorities 

- Suitable Living Environment Priorities 
- Special Needs Housing (non-homeless) Priorities

- Public Services Priorities

• Received  - 126
(5 handwritten / 121 online



FY 2022- 2023 AAP CITIZEN INPUT (continued)
AS OF 7/07/2022

Community Needs Assessment Survey Results 



FY 2022- 2023 AAP CITIZEN INPUT (continued)
AS OF 7/07/2022

Community Needs Assessment Survey Results 



FY 2022- 2023 AAP CITIZEN INPUT (continued)
AS OF 7/07/2022

Community Needs Assessment Survey Results 



FY 2022- 2023 AAP CITIZEN INPUT (continued)
AS OF 7/07/2022

Community Needs Assessment Survey Results 



FY 2022- 2023 AAP CITIZEN INPUT (continued)
AS OF 7/07/2022

Community Needs Assessment Survey Results 



FY 2022-2023 FUNDING ALLOCATIONSSource of Funds Expected Amount 

Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) 

Annual Allocation: $ 358,697 
Program Income: $ 0 

Prior Year Resources: $ 443,415 

Total: $ 802,112 

HOME Investment 
Partnership (HOME) 

Annual Allocation: $ 280,170 
Program Income: $ 1,920 

Prior Year Resources: $ 904,597 

Total: $ 1,186,687 

Community Development Block Grant -
Coronavirus (CDBG-CV) 

Annual Allocation: $ 0 
Program Income: $ 0 

Prior Year Resources: $ 396,247 

Total: $ 396,247 

TOTAL RESOURCES $2,385,046

FY2022-2023
FUNDING ALLOCATIONS



Program Activity CDBG HOME CDBG CV HOME-ARP

CDBG Prior 
Year                           

(as of 6/29/2022)

HOME Prior 
Year                                       

(as of 6/29/2022)

Total 
Funding

Homebuyer Assistance $0 $100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000
Demolition & Clearance $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $100,000 $0 $150,000
Public Services $53,805 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $53,805
CHDO Reserve $0 $42,026 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42,026
Administration $71,739 $28,017 $54,405 $45,396 $0 $0 $199,557
Homeowner Rehab. $163,153 $37,710 $0 $0 $0 $100,000 $300,863
Homeowner Rehab. 
Project Delivery $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000
Affordable Housing 
(Rental/Homeownership) $0 $72,418 $0 $0 $0 $804,597 $877,015
Public Facility 
Improvement (drainage, 
sidewalks, water/sewer, etc.) $0 $0 $0 $0 $343,415 $0 $343,415
CDBG-CV Public Facility-
Broadband Installation $0 $0 $180,000 $0 $0 $0 $180,000
CDBG-CV Undesignated $0 $0 $60,518 $0 $0 $0 $60,518
Activity Totals $358,697 $280,171 $294,923 $45,396 $443,415 $904,597 $2,327,198

FY22-23 PROGRAM BUDGET



Annual Goals and Objectives 

Sort 
Order Activity Name Start 

Year 
End 
Year 

Needs Addressed Funding Goal Outcome Indicator 
1 Homeowner 

Rehabilitation 
2022 2023 Attainable Housing & 

Preservation CDBG: 
$163,153 

HOME: 
$37,710 

Sustainability 

Homeowner Housing 
Rehabilitated: 10 Household 
Housing Units @ $20,000 each 

2 Homebuyer 
Assistance 

2022 2023 Affordable Housing: 
Homelessness and Special 
Needs 

HOME: 
$100,000 

Affordability 

Direct Financial Assistance to 
Homebuyers: 10 Households 
Assisted @ $10,000 each 

3 Public 
Facilities & 
Improvements 

2022 2023 Community Development 
CDBG: 

$50,000 
Sustainability 

Demolition & Clearance 
4 Public 

Services 
2022 2023 

CDBG: 
$53,805 

Availability/Accessibility 

Public service grants to eligible 
nonprofits – priority given to those 
serving the homeless

5 CHDO Activity 2022 2023 
HOME: 

$42,026 
Affordability 

New Housing Construction/ 
Acquisition/Rehabilitation 



6 Program 
Admin. 

2022 2023 
Affordable Housing 

Community 
Development 

CDBG: $71,739 

HOME:$28,0 17 

CDBG-CV:$54,405 

HOME-ARP:$45,396 

Sustainability 

Delivery of programs in Con 
Plan and Annual Action Plan 

7 Pandemic 
Recovery 

2022 2023 Pandemic Recovery 
CDBG-
CV:$216,247 

Grants to eligible nonprofits 
relating to preventing, 
responding to, or preparing 
for the Coronavirus 

8 Public 
Facilities & 
Improvements 

2022 2023 Pandemic Recovery 
CDBG-
CV:$180,000 

Installation of broadband 
equipment on City-owned 
water towers located in 
designated Low-Moderate 
Areas 

Annual Goals and Objectives 



G











H











I















J



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 6/ 
RESOLUTION ALLOWING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN THE PURCHASE

AGREEMENT WITH ATLANTIC COAST FIRE TRUCKS FOR THE PURCHASE OF A

2023 SMEAL REAR MOUNT 75' AERIAL TRUCK FOR NOT MORE THAN $ 1, 109, 995

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro provides its own fire protection; and

WHEREAS, the City' s 2000 E -One rear mount 75' aerial truck is in dire need of

replacement due to the age of the apparatus and continuous costly repairs; and

WHEREAS, the City Council approved the requested replacement fire truck in the FY
22- 23 budget; and

WHEREAS, the Smeal company offers the best option to meet our needs as well as the
best customer service and warranties provided; and

WHEREAS, a Sourcewell contract (# 113021 -RVG -4) was utilized to obtain the

specification and purchase price for a Smeal rear mount 75' aerial truck. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council of the City

of Goldsboro, North Carolina authorizes the City Manager to sign a contract with Atlantic Coast
Fire Trucks for the purchase of a 2023 Smeal Rear Mount 75' Aerial Truck. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City Cl

avid Ham, Mayor









ry XX N/' X/' XX X/ XX XX XX xx. xx -xx XX XV XX XX XX vXX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX. .XX. XX XX XX XX XX X
X

THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

(10) ACFT shall not be liable ifperformance failure arises out of causes b^ond its reasonable control, which causes shall include without

limitation acts of God, war, fires, floods, public health emergencies, difficulty in procuring materials, equipment or tooling failure, height

embargoes, order of any court, strike, lockout, shortage ofliwr, failure or delays by suppliers or contractors, or legislative or governmental, or

other, prohibitions or restrictions.

(11) The Apparatus and Equipment shall remain the property of ACFT until the attire Purchase Price for each and evoy item of Apparatus and

Equipment has been paid. In case of a default in payment, ACFT may take foil possession of the Apparatus and Equipment, or of die item or

items upon which default has been made, and any payments that have been made shall be applied as payment for the use of the Apparatus and

Equipment up to the date ACFT takes possession.

(12) This Contract will only be binding on ACFT after it is signed and proved by an authorized person of ACFT. This Contract (which
includes the other documoits referenced in this Contract) embody the entire agreement and understanding between the parties with respect fo the

subject matter of this Contract and supersede all prior oral or writtai agreanents and understandings relating to the subject matter of this

Contract. No statement, rqrresentation, warranty, covenant or agreement of any kind not expressly sa forth in this Contract shall affect, or be

used to interpret, change or restrict, the express toms and provisions of this Contract. This Contract cannot be altered or modified excqit by

mutual written agreement signed by the parties. The Customer representative signing this Contract on Customer's behalf represents and warrants

that he or she has the authority to sign this Contract and diat all necessary action has been taken by Customer to authorize Customer’s execution

of and performance under this Contract.

(13) In the event that any court of competent jurisdiction shall determine that any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Contract

sh^l be unenforceable in any respect, then the provision shall be deemed limited to the extent that the court deems it enforceable, and as so
limited shall remain in foil force and effect. In the event the court shall deem any provision, or portion thereof, wholly unenforceable, the

remaining provisions of this Contract shall nevertheless remain in foil force and effect.

(14) This Contract shall be governed by and construed in accoixiance with the laws of the State of North Carolina without giving effect to

principles of conflict of laws. Customa irrevocably and unconditionally (a) agrees that any suit, action, or otha legal proceeding arising out of

or relating to this Contract may, at the option of AITFT, be brought in a coiul of record of the State of North Carolina in Wayne County, in the
United Stales District Court for the District of North Carolina, or in any other court of competent jurisdiction; (b) consents to thejurisdetion of

each such court in any such suit, action or proceeding; and (c) waives any objection that it may have to the laying of venue of any such suit,

action, or proceeding in any of such courts.

>;

>:

i>
>

a
fi

>!

>,

s

l>
Submitted to Customa By:  David English

ACFT Sales Representative

June 23,2022on
\ Date/
V

\

ACFT Sales Representative Sit^nature
>i

Customer: Oty of Gyl^sboro (NC)Atlantic Coast Trucl

3 By: By:

plainer Signatu^ ;
/7)- {/o^/Lgyi

/nrint Name

Atlandc Coast Fire Trucks, LLC Authorized

Signature
3

57^/A.' ^3

3 Print Name

7/If/
Daie

By:
X

G-e^V'z-) Cl
Print Name

\t.-3iOXX
'  Date

3 N

/a N

Xa X

X3 X

X3 This instrument ties been preeuditad in the manner

required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal
Control Act' G.S. 4159-28

X

Xa X

Xa X

X3 X

3

(Signature of Finance Offlcerl

































7/5/2022

















RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 6 X

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UPSET BID PROCESS

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro owns certain real property at 1004 Ivy Street (Pin #3509311601); 
and

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A- 269 permits the city to sell real property by upset
bid, after receipt of an offer for the property; and

WHEREAS, the City has received an offer to purchase the property described above, in the amount of
1, 040.00 ( One Thousand Forty Dollars and no/ 100) submitted by Janice Johnson (Offeror); and

WHEREAS, Offeror has paid the required five percent ( 5%) deposit on his/ her offer in the amount of

52. 00 ( Fifty Two Dollars and No/ 100); 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North
Carolina, that: 

1) The City council declares this property as surplus. 
2) The City Council authorizes sale of the property described above through the upset bid procedure of

North Carolina General Statute § 160A- 269. 

3) The Finance Director shall cause a notice of the proposed sale to be published in a newspaper of

general circulation within its jurisdiction. The notice shall describe the property and the amount of the
offer, and shall state the terms under which the offer may be upset. 

4) Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a sealed bid with their offer to

the office of the Finance Director at 200 N. Center Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530 during normal
business hours within 10 days after the notice of sale is published. At the conclusion of the 10 -day
period, the Finance Director shall open the bids, if any, and the highest such bid will become the new
offer. If there is more than one bid in the highest amount, the first such bid received will become the
new offer. 

5) Upset offer and deposit shall be delivered in a sealed envelope. The written offer proposal must

include the name of the person or business making the offer, address of said property, and Wayne
County parcel identification number. The offer shall be signed by the individual or person with
signature authority if a business entity. The outside of the sealed envelope should have the address of
the property, the words " Upset Bid" and include the address of the Property. 

6) The City of Goldsboro reserves the right to reject any or all offers at any time. 
7) If a qualifying higher bid is received, the Finance Director shall cause a new notice of upset bid to be

published, and shall continue to do so until a 10 -day period has passed without any qualifying upset
bid having been received. At that time, the amount of the final high bid shall be reported to the City
Council. 

8) A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent ( 10%) of the

first $ 1, 000. 00 of that existing offer and five percent ( 5%) of the remainder of that existing offer. 
9) A qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five percent ( 5%) of

the bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier' s check, or certified check. The city will return the
deposit on any bid not accepted, and will return the deposit on an offer subject to upset if a qualifying
higher bid is received; provided that sufficient time has elapsed to allow for the payment draft, if by
check, to clear the City' s central depository and be credited to such, the return of the deposit will then



be issued within 10 days of confirmation of clearing. The city will refund the deposit of the final high
bidder at closing or apply to the sales price, as determined at the time of closing by the Finance
Director. 

10) Any Offeror' s bid deposit shall be refunded if it is not the final high bidder; or if mutually agreeable
terms cannot be settled upon if no upset bids are received, provided that sufficient time has elapsed to

allow for the payment draft, if by check, to clear the City' s central depository and be credited to such. 
Refund will be issued within 10 days of confirmation of clearing. 

11) The terms of the final sale are: 

a) City Council must approve the final high offer before the sale is closed, which it will do within 30
days after the final upset bid period has passed. 

b) Buyer must pay with cash at the time of closing. 
c) Buyer must pay closing costs. 

12) The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before the final high bid is
accepted and the right to reject at any time all bids. 

13) If no qualifying upset bid is received after the initial public notice, the offer set forth above is hereby
accepted. The appropriate city officials are authorized to execute the instruments necessary to convey
the property to Offeror. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 11' day of July, 2022. 

Attest: 

L 4 AZ& 
Laura Getz, City Clerk







1003 

1002 

-lll:I' 
0\ 

D 
N 

W+E 
S II 

lUU:J 

Address: 1004 Ivy St 
PIN # 3509311601 

Zonin R-6 

IVY 

50' 

1004 

R-6 

50' 

1007 lUU~ 

1006 

-~ 
0\ 



7/2/22, 7:52 PM Appraisal Card

realestate.waynegov.com/ITSNet/AppraisalCard.aspx?idP=1884210&Action=Auto 1/1

WAYNE COUNTY 7/2/2022 7:52:21 PM
CITY OF GOLDSBORO  Return/Appeal Notes:   3509311601
1004 IVEY ST UNIQ ID 51771
76121320   ID NO: 12000019001037

CITY - GOLDSBORO (100), COUNTYWIDE ADVALOREM TAX (100)       CARD NO. 1 of 1  
Reval Year: 2019 Tax Year: 2022 IVY ST 1.000 LT  SRC=  
Appraised by 60 on 01403 SOUTHSIDE TW-12 C-01 EX-5AT- LAST ACTION 20170729
CONSTRUCTION DETAIL MARKET VALUE  DEPRECIATION CORRELATION OF VALUE

TOTAL POINT VALUE  
BUILDING ADJUSTMENTS
TOTAL ADJUSTMENT
FACTOR
TOTAL QUALITY INDEX  

USE MOD
Eff.
Area QUAL

BASE
RATE RCN EYB AYB CREDENCE TO  

01 00       % GOOD  DEPR. BUILDING VALUE - CARD 0

TYPE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL  

STORIES:  

 

DEPR. OB/XF VALUE - CARD 0
MARKET LAND VALUE - CARD 2,080
TOTAL MARKET VALUE - CARD 2,080
TOTAL APPRAISED VALUE - CARD 2,080
TOTAL APPRAISED VALUE - PARCEL 2,080
TOTAL PRESENT USE VALUE - PARCEL 0
TOTAL VALUE DEFERRED - PARCEL 0
TOTAL TAXABLE VALUE - PARCEL 2,080

PRIOR
BUILDING VALUE 0
OBXF VALUE 0
LAND VALUE 2,080
PRESENT USE VALUE 0
DEFERRED VALUE 0
TOTAL VALUE 2,080

PERMIT
CODE DATE NOTE NUMBER AMOUNT

ROUT: WTRSHD:
SALES DATA

OFF.
RECORD DATE DEED

TYPE Q/UV/I
INDICATE SALES

PRICEBOOK PAGE MOYR
02390 0658 1 2006 WD U I 9000
00927 0325 1 1977 WD U I 0

HEATED AREA  
NOTES

 
SUBAREA

TYPE
GS

AREA %
RPL
CS

FIREPLACE   
SUBAREA
TOTALS    

CODE QUALITY DESCRIPTION LTH WTH UNITS
UNIT
PRICE

ORIG %
COND BLDG# L/B

SIZE
FACT AYB EYB

ANN DEP
RATE OVR

%
COND

OB/XF DEPR.
VALUE

TOTAL OB/XF VALUE 0

BUILDING DIMENSIONS    
LAND INFORMATION

HIGHEST AND
BEST USE

USE
CODE

LOCAL
ZONING

FRON
TAGE DEPTH

DEPTH /
SIZE

LND
MOD

COND
FACT

OTHER ADJUSTMENTS
AND NOTES 
  RF   AC   LC  TO  OT

ROAD
TYPE

LAND UNIT
PRICE

TOTAL
LAND
UNITS

UNT
TYP

TOTAL
ADJST

ADJUSTED
UNIT PRICE

LAND
VALUE

LAND
NOTES

0100 0100 R6 50 95 0.8300 2 1.0000   50.00 50.000 FF 0.830 41.50 2075 
TOTAL MARKET LAND DATA   2,080  
TOTAL PRESENT USE DATA     





RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 0

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UPSET BID PROCESS

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne jointly own certain real property at 1005 Ivy
Street ( Pin #3509310786); and

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A- 269 permits the city to sell real property by upset
bid, after receipt of an offer for the property; and

WHEREAS, the City has received an offer to purchase the property described above, in the amount of
1, 230. 00 ( One Thousand Two Hundred Thirtv Dollars and no/ 100) submitted by Janice Johnson
Offeror); and

WHEREAS, Offeror has paid the required five percent ( 5%) deposit on his/ her offer in the amount of

61. 25 ( Sixty One Dollars and 25/ 100); 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North
Carolina, that: 

1) The City council declares this property as surplus. 
2) The City Council authorizes sale of the property described above through the upset bid procedure of

North Carolina General Statute § 160A- 269. 

3) The Finance Director shall cause a notice of the proposed sale to be published in a newspaper of

general circulation within its jurisdiction. The notice shall describe the property and the amount of the
offer, and shall state the terms under which the offer may be upset. 

4) Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a sealed bid with their offer to

the office of the Finance Director at 200 N. Center Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530 during normal
business hours within 10 days after the notice of sale is published. At the conclusion of the 10 -day
period, the Finance Director shall open the bids, if any, and the highest such bid will become the new
offer. If there is more than one bid in the highest amount, the first such bid received will become the
new offer. 

5) Upset offer and deposit shall be delivered in a sealed envelope. The written offer proposal must

include the name of the person or business making the offer, address of said property, and Wayne
County parcel identification number. The offer shall be signed by the individual or person with
signature authority if a business entity. The outside of the sealed envelope should have the address of
the property, the words " Upset Bid" and include the address of the Property. 

6) The City of Goldsboro reserves the right to reject any or all offers at any time. 
7) If a qualifying higher bid is received, the Finance Director shall cause a new notice of upset bid to be

published, and shall continue to do so until a 10 -day period has passed without any qualifying upset
bid having been received. At that time, the amount of the final high bid shall be reported to the City
Council. 

8) A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent ( 10%) of the

first $ 1, 000. 00 of that existing offer and five percent ( 5%) of the remainder of that existing offer. 
9) A qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five percent ( 5%) of

the bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier' s check, or certified check. The city will return the
deposit on any bid not accepted, and will return the deposit on an offer subject to upset if a qualifying
higher bid is received; provided that sufficient time has elapsed to allow for the payment draft, if by



check, to clear the City' s central depository and be credited to such, the return of the deposit will then
be issued within 10 days of confirmation of clearing. The city will refund the deposit of the final high
bidder at closing or apply to the sales price, as determined at the time of closing by the Finance
Director. 

10) Any Offeror' s bid deposit shall be refunded if it is not the final high bidder; or if mutually agreeable
terms cannot be settled upon if no upset bids are received, provided that sufficient time has elapsed to

allow for the payment draft, if by check, to clear the City' s central depository and be credited to such. 
Refund will be issued within 10 days of confirmation of clearing. 

11) The terms of the final sale are: 

a) City Council must approve the final high offer before the sale is closed, which it will do within 30
days after the final upset bid period has passed. 

b) The Wayne County Board of Commissioners must approve the final sale by concurrence after
final approval by City Council. 

c) Buyer must pay with cash at the time of closing. 
d) Buyer must pay closing costs. 

12) The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before the final high bid is
accepted and the right to reject at any time all bids. 

13) If no qualifying upset bid is received after the initial public notice, the offer set forth above is hereby
accepted. City staff is authorized to seek concurrence from the Wayne County Board of
Commissioners and upon such approval, the appropriate city officials are authorized to execute the
instruments necessary to convey the property to Offeror. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 11 ' day of July, 2022. 

Attest: 

cz 
Laura Getz, City Clerk

avid Ham, .. 







CJ 

1003 

N 

Address: 1005 Ivy St 
PIN # 3509310786 

Zonin R-6 

R-6 

1005 

51' 

IVY 

C 

1007 1009 

_W+E-r--r------r-----f~ s 



7/2/22, 7:53 PM Appraisal Card

realestate.waynegov.com/ITSNet/AppraisalCard.aspx?idP=1875371&Action=Auto 1/1

WAYNE COUNTY 7/2/2022 7:52:59 PM
CITY OF GOLDSBORO        WAYNE COUNTY Return/Appeal Notes:   3509310786
1005 IVEY ST UNIQ ID 51766
75254500   ID NO: 12000019001041

CITY - GOLDSBORO (100), COUNTYWIDE ADVALOREM TAX (100)       CARD NO. 1 of 1  
Reval Year: 2019 Tax Year: 2022 LT 5 GOLDWAYNE 1.000 LT  SRC=  
Appraised by 60 on 01403 SOUTHSIDE TW-12 C-01 EX-2AT- LAST ACTION 20170729
CONSTRUCTION DETAIL MARKET VALUE  DEPRECIATION CORRELATION OF VALUE

TOTAL POINT VALUE  
BUILDING ADJUSTMENTS
TOTAL ADJUSTMENT
FACTOR
TOTAL QUALITY INDEX  

USE MOD
Eff.
Area QUAL

BASE
RATE RCN EYB AYB CREDENCE TO  

01 00       % GOOD  DEPR. BUILDING VALUE - CARD 0

TYPE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL  

STORIES:  

 

DEPR. OB/XF VALUE - CARD 0
MARKET LAND VALUE - CARD 2,450
TOTAL MARKET VALUE - CARD 2,450
TOTAL APPRAISED VALUE - CARD 2,450
TOTAL APPRAISED VALUE - PARCEL 2,450
TOTAL PRESENT USE VALUE - PARCEL 0
TOTAL VALUE DEFERRED - PARCEL 0
TOTAL TAXABLE VALUE - PARCEL 2,450

PRIOR
BUILDING VALUE 0
OBXF VALUE 0
LAND VALUE 2,450
PRESENT USE VALUE 0
DEFERRED VALUE 0
TOTAL VALUE 2,450

PERMIT
CODE DATE NOTE NUMBER AMOUNT

ROUT: WTRSHD:
SALES DATA

OFF.
RECORD DATE DEED

TYPE Q/UV/I
INDICATE SALES

PRICEBOOK PAGE MOYR
02834 0848 1 2011 WD C V 0
02669 0381 12 2008 WD U I 0
01405 0001 12 1993 WD U I 42500
00682 0389 1 1967 WD U I 0

HEATED AREA  
NOTES

P12-07 DEMOLISH FOR 2008
SUBAREA

TYPE
GS

AREA %
RPL
CS

FIREPLACE   
SUBAREA
TOTALS    

CODE QUALITY DESCRIPTION LTH WTH UNITS
UNIT
PRICE

ORIG %
COND BLDG# L/B

SIZE
FACT AYB EYB

ANN DEP
RATE OVR

%
COND

OB/XF DEPR.
VALUE

TOTAL OB/XF VALUE 0

BUILDING DIMENSIONS    
LAND INFORMATION

HIGHEST AND
BEST USE

USE
CODE

LOCAL
ZONING

FRON
TAGE DEPTH

DEPTH /
SIZE

LND
MOD

COND
FACT

OTHER ADJUSTMENTS
AND NOTES 
  RF   AC   LC  TO  OT

ROAD
TYPE

LAND UNIT
PRICE

TOTAL
LAND
UNITS

UNT
TYP

TOTAL
ADJST

ADJUSTED
UNIT PRICE

LAND
VALUE

LAND
NOTES

0100 0100 R6 50 139 0.9800 2 1.0000   50.00 50.000 FF 0.980 49.00 2450 
TOTAL MARKET LAND DATA   2,450  
TOTAL PRESENT USE DATA     





M

CAd

a U

o

cd•

3

U`

Mw, 

O

O

O

O

O

03

V

O

Cd

U

U

l

a

O

a 

Ucz
U

U

O

O

O

21

cz

bn

o

cd . 

cd

Cd

Q

W

2-

d

k

p• 

o

Q

bcq; 

W

c0 

ct

cd

o 

o

opo

C', 

pq

E

N

o

W

o3

CA

U

4

b -

S

U

3zC,
3

0

n

cu

o

U

o

Q

03

CAd

a 

U

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

bn

1,

0

k

n

D

b -

S

U

wbDejU03v

x

E 

H

Q) 

L

u

c

w

W
U

U

CAd

a U





MN
NONzzWU0

d

O — 

cq '

C3

b

G 

cz

O

t. ^" ) 

N

y

O

N

c' 

U

c 

N  " 

y

0

0

C'. •., 

0

vQi" 

0

F" 

N

O

U

Cd

v

o

m

v

ca

y

o

w

o

o

p

co

b

o

v

p — 

O

O

co .

fl

w

Q

M

s. 

i 

p

O

wo

0

00

w0
V5r. 

Cd

03

4-

43 (
1)

b ° 

o

a> 

b

p > 

U

y

p

cz - 

cd

co °' 

C'
s

y

o

0

o

abi

a

o

o

3

o

co

oCO
o

a

O

O

A

b

O5

O

N ^ 

0

0

O

0 

i

0,'

c

O

Q ^

I

U

UV
cy~d

Q. 

4:
4

4] 

ca

H

00

10. 

0

0cn
W

co

Q) 

cz

moi

a' 

yy°' 

o

ani

c° 

N

c

cd

b

0

c° 

ps

44

a 

Y

3

C.) 

0

w -

b

o

i

ami

p .,'

I:$ 

c 

cC  

cpi

ani

O
c° 

Q

ami

pp" 

0

ami  ; 

b

as  

0

co0
00

cd

p

0

4 

p

p

U

r. 

C;

3

O

ovao

cd

u

co

co

to

0

C;

3U .
O ° 

A, 

0

co

p

er

d

GA • 

o

a 

a 

x 

o

on

cd

0

o -

0 ,  

z

C7

ti  

p

U  

i0 -i '

b

b •   

N

N .

d  

O

O '

y

o

C7

to

i ° 

wwWC7

w3

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

U

yNbfl

D, 

00

0

E" 

sc

m

W

z

c

a

rl

O

is

x

41

Cl)

C) 

fJr

ai

CQ

d

d

0.
1

rs

m

bi

03 LO

Lo

CO

Co

O

O

LOC 

t0

CV

r? 

c'

cz

W

tr

rCd
i

o 

v 

y,'

cz

czo

w

E

x

E--

4

E

f 

E

C3
E

o

0O

cc
O

cc
o

00
O

o

0

O

O

O

cc
O

0

0

0

cc
0

0

0

C

CV

Ci

00

C

00

4

o0

CV

14

4-
3

c0

C
r

d

C11

t

C11

o

I" " 

to " 

o

L- 

o

cO

m

cO

cc

It

o

t

m

t

N

t

t-: ,-

i

ai

L

ai

4

o

L

0

L

N

Co

L6

Cn

q

O

m

cc

m

N

co0
o

m

t

00

co

t

00

y —

4

CD

t

cV

Co

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

R

0

o

O

O

O

o

o

O

o

0

o

C 

m

00 " 

ci

ell

cc

1

c4

L- 

N

00

0

N

Ilr

t

LO

m

m

00

t

t

t 

CA

O

O

M

N

kO

CD

d

O

t " 

N

CV

C> 

N
d' 

N

Lo. 

4

m

O

CD

t

L

00

4

L

O

N

M

C7

m

CV

Co

CV

00

t

CV

O

L— 

NN

00

i

U

Eo 

Gor 

GQ- 

19

ds

es

ds

sg

N

N

V) Cl)

cq

cq

o41

o

z

t

o

0

wo

o

m

c

0

4 

dh0

d

CO

am+ "

4

4. 
C) 

bA

U 

q

yNbfl

D, 

00

0

E" 

sc

m

W

z

c

a

rl

O

is

x

41

Cl)

C) 

fJr

ai

CQ

d

d

0.
1

rs

m

bi

03

O° 

43

0

Cd

a

r? 

c'

cz

W

tr

rCd

i

o 

v 

y,'

cz

czo

a

E

x

E--

4

cV000
O

t
ty

o41

U

cz

CSV

Z

CSV

y

O

D, 

00

0

E" 

sc

m

W

r' 

c

a

rl

O

is

adu

O0

0

Cd

a

4 ,, 

Pa

W

d

P 

a

E

f 

E

C3

E



GGI0

0

L

0.

3

0 

O

O

1-

4I

Cfl

00

Cfl

M

roccq

I

m

O

00

00

r -

i

14

GQ- 

o 

0

0

C', 

O

O

O

O

c] 

I

U

O

cli

C 

OO

o

0

ci

s. 

c 

o

w

O

A

O

O

GO" 

O

O

O

O

O

CV .--

i

ti

cc

C

C+

i

t1

L6

O

00

4

cs

00

d

Lo

GGI0

0

L

0.

3

0 

O

O

1-

4I

Cfl

00

Cfl

M

roccq
I

m

O

00

00

r -

i

14

GQ- 

o 

0

0

C', 

O

O

O

O

0

0

d

O

cli

C 

O

O

O

O

cl

N

o

0

ci

s. 

c 

o

O

O

U

O

O

s

GGI0

0

L

0.
3

0 

O

O

1-

4I

Cfl

00

Cfl

M

roccq
I

m

O

00

00

r -

i

14

GQ- 

o 

0

0

C', 

O

O

O

O

cz

0

d

O

cli
C 

O

O

O

O

00

0

O

0

ci

o

c 

o

O

O

O

GODIe

600, 

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

o

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

CIS

0+ 

L6

L6

ti

C

C

4

cs

00

Lo

Lo

CD

10

ti

O

O

O

O

00

00

LO

Ll

Cfl

O

N

o0

00

O

O

CV

CV

CYD

m

t- 

t- 

4

r -

q

t

x

N

O

O

N

CC

CD

CO

a7

m

CYD

67

O

Ic

Co

CYD

CYD

d

d

d

d

CSD

CD

000

a

a) 

au

a) 

a) 

y

0

a) 

an

an

u

m

bA

an

Ge

Cf} 

EL} 

ER

66, 

GQ, 

Ge

E03

Ef4

Ef3

b4

EA

FG

fig

O

O

O

O

o

0
o

O

o

0

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

o

o

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

0

0

o

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

o6

CV

CV

0

CC

cl

00

L6

C5

C

C

L6

CC )-

6

i

l

C

cM

O

m

Lo

m

O

L

O

l "

D

m

d' 

N

CD

ifD " 

O

O

M

CYD

m

L• 

CD

m

N

in

CeD

N

D

N

O

O

00

N

O

N

Lo

CV

O

O

t

N

O

O

00

L

u6
C? 

O

00

O

00

N

4

CD

t- 

CO

LO

r -

I

CSS

O

O

O

67

CD

L

00

00

k

a

a) 

It

N

O

N

Lo

N

N

t

O

d

O

N

Ir " 

c] 

N

N

O) 

m

00

O0

v
CD

N

LO

t

cV

CfD

O

CV

1-
4

0o

O

C7

N

LO

a

o

eq

v

W

GV

0

0

0

0

0

0
0

O

O

o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

O

O

O

O

o

O

O

o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

00

ci

ci

o

u 

N

cc

cc

a; 

L6

cc

ca

o; 

N _

0

y, 

e0 a 

C-
1

0

O

0

m

O

N

Un

N

m

I" 

m

N

ul" 

o

M- 

Lo

0" 

cl

Il -

1

oc

N

u0

lq

cc

i

di

O

N

oc

Ll

Ca

E- 

C 

Cfl
p'
0

ao

LO
l- 

cV

00

O

cc

It

i

00

m

co

m

cc

C•
1

cV

cV

c] 

m

00

10

oo

cD

m

O

lzr

N

C) 

t- 

Lo

oo

m

N

C 

ti

o

0

N

C-
1

CD

m

N

M

C'

t

LO

oo

N
t- 

00

N

LO

00

N

m

CD

m

Lo

d

N

CD

W. 

GQI

GID. 

flp- 

GO" 

GOD

f

o0

N

1-
1

c\oio

coim

Q

coicD

E

ow

cq0

x

Nm

N0

O

cD

Ncoi
m

O

co

coicc

a 

O

i, 

a 

a) 

a

a) 

au

a) 

a) 

y

0

a) 

an

an

u

m

bA

an

an

as

bA

bA

an

d

bD

FG

a

O

a1

q

o°° 

Pa

m

O

Gq

Pa

m

FG
a-= 

dy

ami

4." 

W

O

kyr
G

a 

1. 

Z- 

j+"" 

m

cz

d

t« 

CIO

R11
Cl, 

E 

Cs

C) 

p '  

m

p. 

C) 

sa ... 

a) 

o

a> 

1.

4

o

a) 

a
a> _  

k

a

a) 

a 

a
a) 

a

o

eq

v

W

GV

kW

cV

kW

cV

a) 

kW

y

c7

kW

t7

c] 

kW

a 

cV

kW

c] 

kW

C7

LV

kW

cV

a) 

kW

W

a 

c] 

s, 

ed

to3

LV

s0ed

0

w

Cd

cq

cd

yy+ 

0

0

m

0

Ci

y

m

ey

O

v

s.

0

sO

ez

CZ

N _

0

y, 

e0

q

wv 
o

G

c/

n

0

q

PL, 

CIO

0

G

cc

yC, 

wC7U5
0

f

cc

0

co

0

cc

Oa
a

s

410

0

wcn
0

i 

U) 

20

E- 

A

FE- 
44

E -

C3

E

P 

E 

U

E- 

P64

E

0

Ar
F

M

F

N



O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

cq

O

O

O

O

O

OO

ci

c1

d

d

IN

N

o0

o0

O

cc

c

L6

C

16c
U

L-.: 

U

t-:' 

O

a7

c 

U

crJ

io

10

cow

O

O

00
O

1-
4

r -
q

m

co

O

co

Lo

O

L

d' 

O

CV

CV

cocc

OcC

Nc1

c] 

o0cc

Oco

oc

co

M

cc

O

ClO

ClO

Z

o0

O

d

r= 

O

U

00

O00

c a 

u

m

u

m

M

N

m

I -

q

m

m

u

o

co

co

0

t- 

N

0

c7

cl

et

cV

co

oo

00

00

m

mYJ

ew

r, 

co

m ,

yW

U

CO

dO

0s. 

N

bD

A

x. 

a

pa

m

A

q

m '

r

H

m

v

m

ai

a0i

Ow

U. O

m1

m

GOD. 

GOD- 

G6 

GAI

G09

609- 

GOD- 

GOD 

sg

se

Goa

99- 

bs

GOD

e9- 

GOD

YDI

GG

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

O

O

O

O

o

0

o

O

O

O

O

O

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

o

O

O

O

o

0

0

o

O

o

0

0

0

o

O

O

O

O

o

0

o

O

O

o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

o

O

O

O

o

0

mo
a; 

M

o

cm

LO

cc
1" 

o

cc

ci

4m+
S

4

o

t- 

LO

Ic

m
L- 

o

cc

o

14

ci

aim

023

N

cq

oo

LO

eq

oo

mll 

00

0

m

N

Lo

Lo

O

0

N

0

t- 

N

o

m

O

co

o

ua

O

00

0

0

n

ul

o

oc

a 

co

O

0

0

to

m+

D

m
m

ccs '

Il

oc

n

O

Cl

oo

Ll

oc

n

0

O

Q) 

O

t- 

00

O

0

ci

m

10

L- 

Lo

oo

co

cc

cc

C-
1

c 

co

t- 

m

o

m

It

m

N

qt:

v

00

m

0

00

TI, 

zs

Les

L6

o

4

cS

O

co

m

O

m

io

oo

d' -

q

Co

t- 

w

cz

O

c] 

m

m

co

00

O

0 ,-

i

oo

M

c7

co

OO
00

m

M

o

oc

O

N

o

4

0

m

et

N

m

Lo

to

co

It

It

00

N

m

m

o .

4

m

m

My
t-

4

L

o

Q) 

ci -

4

UO

w  

F

cl

c0

H

d

F

r; 

L

o

ci
t-: 

C

N

Iti

N

cc

cc

c0

A

w

UZ

E- 

d

0

0

o

O

O

o

0

o

O

o

0

o

O

cc
O

o

o

O

o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

O

0

0

O

o

0

0

0

o

O

O

o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

O

o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

O

O

O

m

C-
1- 

ai

Lo

14

10

cc

Ncc
N

0

cc

It

o

o

r4

M

o

4

uo

N

LO -

0

m

t- 

o

cc

LO

00

ci

co

I' 

cc

m

m

m

Lo

co

Cv

co

Lo

oo

m
c 

O

M

LO

cc

N

It

0
L- 

o

N

ci

O

o

0

O

O

co

o

O

O

Ll 

LI; 

Ll

N

tcoo
Z

N 

lc

oo

co

0

o

c 

ci

ti

u  

me

o

o

oo

O

o

o

ci

N

r

N

t

Lo

cc

cc

N

o

00

m

cc

co

co

4

mLO
m

N

m

oo

cc

o

00

L

L6

cr 

4

ai

co -

1

co

m

N

Itt

o

m

t- 

LO

C9

cV

CV

co

oo

o

N

m

co

00

o

0-

0

N

m

ca

cc

o

0

co

o

4

ct

c 

o

m

0

ul 

utca
0

cV

tCl

N

mu

o ..

1 -

4•

a - 

ct

m

L

co

ci
C

ci

co

ao

No0
o

N

a 

N

co

ci

m

a 

GPI

GAI

Ga

G09

60

Ga

Ga

GOD- 

Gs

SiD

SIIoll

M

co

m

cv
ct

ca

cuc

o

cq

cq

ca
N

y

clN

14

ca
ca

c0i

coi

m

oV

a\

OV

c01

E

coi

cowc07

0

o

CDu

m

u

bD

cd

d0C

zO

u

w

C

u

cz

is

u

i.. 

U

bA

C) 

C

m7

m ,

y

W

U

CO

dO

0s. 

N

bD

m

Cd

x. 

a

pa

m

w

q

m '

r

H

m

v

m

ai

a0i

Ow

U. O

m1

m

C 

a

Gz

c

A

a; 

Q

a) 

1

a; 

G

Q

N

a; 

P, 

a

p

O

oZj

d

P 

C

0.1

ti

C

A

d

Pa

X ~ 

o

so
a 

7

a) 

o

P 

zy

G7

o

CG

C

a 

C

d

o2i

a0i

023

o

o? 

O

a0i

1

023

W

m

ed

eo

m

G1

c 

mC) 

S 

x

S 

P9

m

cd

c 

a 

f3sc

O

m

o

c 

o

C K

VJ

m

Cu

Gk

to

m+

D

m
m

O. 

O. 

U > 

m

U

m 

d

s. 

m

o -

C

a

F

M
c 

ma 

Gx

M

ma) 

GL

W

N

s

s+ 

w

m

c 

s. 

w

U

cV

s; 

w

w

cV

s 

w

mow
y, 

a) 

0

0. 

A

y

x

cu

s

w

cV

s+ 

w

cz

cd

D

id

cd

as

ns

w

cd

a 

c .

O

s 

a

id

m

cd

E 

W

w  

E 

a  

E- 

UO

w  

F

S

U

Eo- 

0.
4

H

d

F

E-  

U

U

rl  

F

A

A

Eo

A

w

UZ

E- 

M



10

0

0

0

mGOD -
11

609, 

0

0

0

in

ul 

oci

Ci

o

CD = 

C1i

e6kn

e6l

0

0oClO 
GOD -
11

GRI

0

0

0

m

Cl " 

CD

LO

m

0

0

0

000

000

0

LO

i

I.

n

Eo
li

G09

0

0

0

ti

o

00

O

m

r

0

ci

0000
m0a 

0

0

0

c5

o6

6c0iC14oocio
of0

06
N

E:

4

Q

v

O

Lo

i

an

d

00

d

00

m

d 

Lo

d

O

ifs

N

Q) 

O

d

L

O

L

L+ 

Ln

00 ,--

1

O

00

m 

LO

O

CeD

d' 

CrJCC
ro

C4

0N0U4r ti

EA

Ff3

Ef} 

Efd

E{} 

69

f} 

E} 

H4

Ef3

Grl

Ff3

b
Fr

o

w

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

eq

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

C

CC

Cfl

a 

00

C

O

d

d

00

0

CD

06

O

00

C

O

b

mgr
Mr

00

LN

in

d

to

oL

0
00

0
00

N00
N

N

0LO

0o
m

m0cv0
0

cq

eq

0

0rr

I -
i

o

cl

a 

a; 

06

4
0

L 

i

L

C

cc

4

o

a

cc

a; 

0

0

Lo

m

m

L

U 00

e1

L -

4 " 

o

cq

0

PQ

00

m

L

0

m

Lo

LO

00

m

k ^

t3

00

O

0

m

o

o

o

v

N

C

4

C'

7
r

i

L6

Qi

a) 

i

Ld
W

ri
c] 

d

CD

a) 

W

st

N

a) 

CA

cq

cd

CZ

a> "" 

CQ

m

b

cd

Srcq
it

W

ao
eq

W

0sy

W

W
cz

rl

C'

s

o

C 

0 

1

a 

G} 

Ef} 

99. 

se
11

GG

61, 

6S

Ge
11

BF.} 

Hd

603- 

GG

E:

4Q

v

curo0U4rN

a4

bFr

o

W

s

NC\
OV

q

ccqC9

ca

eq

a) 

rz

I.

Cll

cz

Cd

ami

4,

L.a

CDbb

aa) 

04

C) ml

U

bD

o

a) 

w

40

a 

a) 

r' 

a; 

A

0

a; 

U

O

R; 

CIO

a
a 

0

PQ

O

0

ty

rr

G 

k ^

t3

O

0

p

U

Qi

4i

N

Qi

a) 

i

W

v7

s

4 

w

0

G'. 

CD

a) 

W

st

N

a) 

a)

0

cd

CZ

a> "" 

CQ

m

b

cd

Srcq

it

W

ao

eq

W

0sy

W

Wcz

rl

C'

s

o

C 

0 

U 

R'

UUw

E
E

E

E

E-

0

E

Es— 

E:

4Q

v



Q

Removed from Agenda













STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF WAYNE

mew" A
THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 3 day of Februmr, 2014, by and

between the City ofGoldsboro, the County of Wayne and Friends of Seymour Johnson AFB, a
registered assumed name of Seymour Support Council, Inc. 

WITNESSETH: 

THAT WHEREAS, Seymour Johnson Air Force Base is a Department of Defense
Installation located in Goldsboro, Wayne County, North Carolina, which currently hosts the only
F- 15E Formal Training Unit in the world, and has assigned to it approximately one -third of the
nation' s F -15E aircraft and is also home to the 916th Air Refueling Wing at which 16 KC- 135 -R
tanker aircraft are assigned, and

WHEREAS, the economic impact of Seymour Johnson Air Force Base has been
estimated at approximately $ 1. 5 Million per day, and the people of Seymour Johnson Air Force
Base represent a critical part of this community' s culture and heritage, and

WHEREAS, the Military Affairs Committee, currently a committee of the Chamber of
Commerce of Wayne County, Inc., has been an integral part of developing a base - community
relationship which has been widely recognized as a national model for other Air Force
Communities, and

WHEREAS, in recognition ofthe Department of Defense cuts that have been ongoing for
decades, the accelerated rate at which they are now occurring due to the shrinking of our
military, the excess infrastructure ofwhich the armed services have been complaining, and the
enormous economic and social impact that closure of Seymour Johnson Air Force Base or even a
significant reduction in the mission and personnel assigned to Seymour Johnson Air Force Base
could present, the Military Affairs Committee has formed a 501( c)( 6) tax exempt entity with the
registered assumed name Friends of Seymour Johnson AFB, for the purpose of working with
hired consultants to take such actions as can be undertaken to maximize the importance, value
and reputation of Seymour Johnson Air Force Base to the Department of Defense and to try to
insulate it from reductions in mission, personnel, or facilities, and

WHEREAS, in recognition of the importance of this action and in reliance on the wealth
of knowledge and significant ability of those who have volunteered countless hours of service to
the community and base and established relationships with thousands of members of the Air
Force community currently leading the Friends of Seymour Johnson AFB, the City of Goldsboro
and County of Wayne have agreed to jointly provide input and guidance and to provide
significant financial support to Friends of Seymour Johnson AFB in accordance with the terms
and conditions

herein set out. 

Page 1 of 4



NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY MUTUALLY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City of Goldsboro and the County ofWayne will each cause to be available to
the Friends of Seymour Johnson AFB their City or County manager or other
professional designee ( hereinafter Manager/ Designee) who will endeavor to attend and provide
Professional input to the overall direction and guidance of Friends of Seymour Johnson AFB. 

2. That the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne will each name a member of its
governing board to serve as an ex- officio representative ofFriends of Seymour Johnson Air
Force Base, who will endeavor to attend and provide input to the overall direction and guidanceof Friends of Seymour Johnson AFB. 

3. That the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne will, until terminated in accordance
herewith, each provide equal financial support to Friends of Seymour Johnson AFB as
follows: 

A. each will reimburse Friends of Seymour Johnson AFB, until it expires, one- 
half of any and all consulting contracts approved by its ex- officio
representative and Manager/ Designee. It is understood and agreed that upon execution of
this agreement, consulting contracts will be executed calling for total monthly
payments up to $ 18, 500. 00 per month, providing for payments from the City of
Goldsboro and County of Wayne of $9,250.00 per month each. 

B. each will reimburse to Friends of Seymour Johnson AFB one -half of
the compensation to a paid to a local representative of Friends of Seymour Johnson AFB, 
as an independent contractor who is providing pursuant to a written
agreement requiring average time expenditure ofat least 10 hours per week, operational
direction and administrative guidance. At inception this compensation shall be at the rate
of $2084.00 per month or $1042. 00 each for the City of Goldsboro and County ofWayne. 

C. each will pay to Friends of Seymour Johnson AFB the sum of
625. 00 each per month for administrative assistance to Friends of Seymour Johnson

AFB, currently being provided by the Chamber of Commerce of Wayne County, Inc. 

D. each will provide financial support for events to be hosted by Friends of
Seymour Johnson AFB, including annual events at Air Combat Command
Headquarters for ACC leadership, events in the Capitol area for Pentagon leadership and
the Congressional Delegation, leadership, and friends in Congress and local events
hosting military leaders and others important to the purposes herein set out as detennined
by the Board ofDirectors ofFriends of Seymour Johnson AFB in an projected
monthly amount of $1000. 00 each from the City and County. This amount will be
budgeted but it is understood that this support may fluctuate. 

Page 2 of 4



4. It is understood and agreed that the support provided in 3. B., 3. C., and 3. 1). above can
be cancelled on 30 days' notice due to gross malfeasance of the recipient of said payments, or
upon 90 days notice without cause. The support for funding provided for in Section 3. A. is
terminable according to the same terms that the consulting contracts that the
Managers/ Designees approve, and all parties agree that we should try to insert provisions making
each consulting contract terminable with reasonable notice. 

5. All payments called for in Sections 3. A. through 3. D. shall be invoiced and are due
quarterly on an agreed schedule commencing on February 1, 2014. The amounts called for
herein shall be used in furtherance of the purposes herein described. Budgeted but unused funds
may accumulate in the accounts of the Friends of Seymour Johnson AFB from year to year, in
part to provide funds in anticipation of the increased efforts that may be necessary as deadlines
for congressional action approach. 

6. It is understood and agreed that Friends of Seymour Johnson AFB expects
to solicit private contributions to support this effort, and will host local events and engage in
direct solicitation of local businesses in an effort to raise at least $50,000.00 annually. These
funds will be expended in support of the organization' s efforts and will be used largely to
supplement the cost of events such as those described in Section 3. D. above. It is expressly
understood that some of the money raised privately may be carried over from year to year in
anticipation of the increased efforts that may be necessary as deadlines for congressional action
approach. 

7. Detailed financial records regarding all expenditures ofpublic funds by Friends of
Seymour Johnson AFB shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Friends of Seymour Johnson AFB agrees to create a finance committee to oversee
expenditure of the organization' s public funds, which will have 9 voting members. Three seats
on the finance committee shall be appointed by the Wayne County Commissioners, three seats
on the finance committee shall be appointed by the Goldsboro City Council, and three seats on
the finance committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors of the Friends of Seymour
Johnson AFB. It is anticipated that at least one of the members from the City of Goldsboro and
the County of Wayne will be a manager or assistant manager employed by the governments. 
Each of these three groups will designate a member as their staff member. Within 10 days of the
execution of this contract, notice of the members selected ( and their preferred method of
receiving notice of a meeting) by each entity shall be sent to Jimmie Edmundson, President of
Friends of Seymour Johnson AFB, c/o the Chamber of Commerce of Wayne County, P.O. Box
1107, Goldsboro, NC 27533. Notice of any substitution of membership on the finance committee
shall be provided to said address or such other address as may be provided. 

8. All expenditures in excess of $1500 must be approved by the finance committee. 
Meetings of the finance committee shall require 3 days' notice and a quorum of 5 members must
be present at the start of a meeting for the committee to transact business. In the event that a
quorum is not present, a member of the finance committee may participate by telephone as long
as the member participating by telephone is able to hear each member personally present and
each member personally present can all hear the member participating by telephone. 

Page 3 of 4



Approvals of expenditures may be specific, or by advance approval of classes ofexpenditures. In
the event that the actual cost of a budgeted item exceeds the budget by less than $ 1500, the
excess may be approved by the members designated as staffmembers by the 3 organizations. 

This 3 day of , 2014. 

City of Goldsboro

By: _ M3 t

County of Wayne

By: 

Seymour Support Uouncil, Inc., d/ b /a/ 
Friends of Seymour Johnson AFB

Page 4 of 4



City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

June 2022 

1. Community Relations
2. Downtown Development
3. Engineering
4. Finance
5. Fire
6. Human Resources
7. Information Technology
8. Inspections
9. Paramount Theater-GEC

10. Parks and Recreation
11. Planning
12. Police
13. Public Utilities
14. Public Works
15. Travel and Tourism

- Report not available at time of posting - Received 7-12-22

Item R



 

1 
 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 
June 2022 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Development & Relations Director 
Date Prepared:  July 1, 2022 
 
• The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) does not meet for the month of June.   

 
• The Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) met for a rescheduled regular monthly meeting 

and hosted a 22-23 Annual Action Plan Public Meeting on June 21st.   
 

• Goldsboro Youth Council (GYC) held its final 2021-2022 regular meeting on June 1st.   
 

• Community Relations Activities:  
1. Staff facilitated a Juneteenth planning meeting on June 8th & June 17th.    
2. Staff attended the regular meeting of the Wayne County JCPC on June 10th.  
3. Staff provided City staff support at the Juneteenth event at the HUB on June 18th.  
4. Staff attended the USPS Employee Appreciation event at Herman Park on June 20th. 
5. Staff attended the regular meeting of CALM Executive Board on June 21st.  
6. Staff participated in the District 4 Listening Tour on June 25th.  
7. Staff met with new Asst. City Manager, as scheduled, on June 30th.  
 

• Community Development Activities:  
1. Staff participated in a URP19 on-site monitoring visit with the NCHFA on June 2nd.   
2. Staff attended a virtual HOME-ARP kick off meeting with WBD consultants on June 3rd.   
3. Staff facilitated a CDBG-CV broadband installation meeting with IT on June 7th.   
4. Staff met with a Homebuyer Assistance applicant on June 10th.  
5. Staff completed a CDBG-CV monitoring visit at the Salvation Army on June 13th.  
6. Staff attended a virtual meeting with Habitat for Humanity on June 15th. 
7. Staff facilitated an Annual Action Plan public meeting on June 21st.  
8. Staff conducted a CDBG-CV agency monitoring visit at the Partnership for Children on June 22nd.  
9. Staff conducted a 2nd CDBG-CV monitoring visit at the Salvation Army on June 23rd.  
10. Staff conducted a 2nd CDBG-CV monitoring visit at Four Day Movement on June 24th. 
11. Staff conducted a 2nd CDBG-CV monitoring visit at the Salvation Army on June 27th.  
12. Staff engaged in 7 phone/virtual consults with HUD Representative for the month of June.      
13. Staff engaged in 1 phone consult with NCHFA Case Manager for the month of June.   

       
• The Department received one (1) housing complaint and forty-one (41) requests for assistance for the month of June. 

*Please refer to Community Relations Addendum for a detailed summary.   
 

2022 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 3 0 0 0 3 1       1 
Consumer/Other 
Requests 

24 36 25 141 69 43       28 

 



 

 
 

1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT Addendum 
June 2022 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  July 1, 2022 
 
Complaints/Grievances 
Nature of Complaint               Resolution 

Housing (No A/C) Called and left voicemail 
to schedule intake.  Call 
not returned. 

 
Assistance with Resources 
 Resource Requested            Number of Requests  Resolution 

Home Repair 7 Referred to Hope 
Restoration & Wages 
*Informed City’s CDBG 
Rehab. Program will 
begin FY22. 

First-Time Homebuyer 
 

27 Provided program 
information and/or 
application packet 

Looking to give away 
excess food 

1 Referred to Community 
Soup Kitchen 

Nonprofit Assistance 1 Referred to State 
agencies 

Affordability Period on 
Current Loan 

1 Provided information 
from file 

Seeking Community 
Service Hours 

1 Referred to community 
agencies 

Seeking former 
employee information 

1 Not referred/Unable to 
provide personnel 
information 

Trash pick-up 1 Referred to Public 
Works 

Food Assistance 1 Referred to Community 
Resource List 

Total Requests: 41  
 



1 

Downtown Development Department 
June 2022 Monthly Report 
Prepared By: Erin Fonseca 
Date Prepared: July 5, 2022 
 Current Downtown Development Office Projects Staff Worked On Over the Month Include:  

• Met with (or conversed by email/phone) 6 potential new property acquisition projects/persons and/or business 
interests regarding downtown. 

• Over the past month, staff visited downtown businesses 20 times.   
• Committee Work Plan Task Review & Assignments 
• Merchant/Property Information Management – Began Data Collection w/ Development Service 
• New Website Development – Intended Rollout in July 2022 
• Economic Development Assessment Reporting – Waiting for Stakeholder Feedback 

Downtown Development Office Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:           

• Annual Main Street Accreditation Received  

• COG 22/23 FY budget & year-end spending planning 

• Tiger Grant Reporting 

• Completion of move to 116 N Center St  
• Business & Property Development Specialist – open until filled 

• Arts District Feasibility Study Input & Completion Presentation to Council 
• Public Art Contract Signed – Steering Committee Recruitment through mid-July 

DGDC Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  
• Open House for 116 N Center St held on June 21st  
• Facilitated and attended the DGDC Merchants Committee Meeting (6/6), Design, Promotions & EV (6/14), 

Executive Committee (6/8) and DGDC Board (6/15). 
• Center Street Jam prep and promotion. Jams held June 2nd, 16th and 30th. Continued Vendor & volunteer 

recruiting.  
• Sprinkler Fun Days – began June 9th; partnered with GFD to host through Aug 18th.  
• DGDC Board & Committee Member Application Process to Begin in July 2022. 
• Jamz Out Juneteenth Celebration – Saturday, June 18th at The HUB 

Upcoming Events/Activities:  
• Website redesign for smooth integration of businesses and properties.  
• Goldsboro Union Station Adaptive Reuse – soliciting appraisals.  
• Grant solicitations for Duke Energy & Wells Fargo. Exploring Additional Grants  
• Upcoming HUB Events– Spotlight Under the Stars, July 16th; Goldsboro Optimist Club Kids Fun Day, August 6th  

Businesses Opening/Properties Purchased & Other Updates 
• Record Rack AirBnb opened June 29th   
• New Businesses Coming Soon to 116 – 120 E Mulberry St 
• Arts Council Relocation to 123 N Center Street is Underway 
• Downtown Goldsboro’s Facebook page followers/likes: 13,946  



 

 
 

1 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
June 2022 
Prepared by:  Bobby Croom, P. E.                     
Date Prepared:  6-27-22 
              
Stoney Creek Greenway   

• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600 
linear feet; 

• Project is scheduled to be advertised in July. 
 

Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 
• Project is complete with the exception of receiving final pay application from the contractor. 

 
2017 Wastewater System Improvements – FB2020-002  

• The project consists of sewer rehabilitation along North Carolina Street from Holly Street to Ash 
Street, sewer rehabilitation along the Big Ditch Outfall from George Street south to Crump Street; 
and sewer rehabilitation of a 200-foot segment from the Little River Outfall into old Cherry Hospital 
Campus; 

• Staff working with contractor on final payment. 
 
Ash Street/Alabama Avenue Sidewalk  

• This project consists of installing sidewalk from the right-of-way of NC Railroad along Ash Street to 
Alabama Street then down Alabama Street to Oak Street; 

• Construction plans are 90% complete; 
• This project is temporarily on hold. 

 
2019 Water Improvements Project 

• The Wooten Company engineering agreement provides services for preliminary engineering report 
and environmental report for substandard City of Goldsboro water lines; 

• PER/EID Report approved by DWI; 
• Staff has submitted application for an ARPA grant to recoup project design fees. 

 
Little/Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation and Improvement 

• WithersRavenel engineering agreement provides services for project management, engineering 
report and environmental information documentation for Little/Big Cherry Pump Station; 

• PER/EID Report submitted  to DWI for review and approval; 
• Project is a candidate to be included in the Mount Olive Pickle (MOP) Plant Expansion Project and 

staff is working with MOP, WithersRavenel, and TA Loving through the design process. 
 
Stormwater Control Measure (SCMs) Inspections   

• Approximately 308 SCMs have been approved and 258 SCMs have been constructed to date; 
• Stormwater Control Measure Inspections were completed for June 2022. 

 



2 

Phase III Wastewater System Improvements 
• Staff has submitted project application for ARPA grant and is working on final design. 

 
Water System Asset Inventory and Assessment 

• WithersRavenel project work in progress. 
 
Wastewater System Asset Inventory and Assessment 

• WithersRavenel project work in progress. 
 
Wayne County Utility Merger/Regionalization Feasibility 

• Contract being routed to officially start the project. 
 
Stormwater Inventory Project 

• Pilot area work has begun; 
• Staff continues to work with CDM Smith on project data and details. 

 
2” Galvanized Water Line Project 

• Staff has submitted an application to transfer the currently awarded loan (which we cannot accept 
due to the City’s audit status) to an ARPA grant. 

 
Water Treatment Plant Assessment 

• Staff to meet with WithersRavenel to review report and findings. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
JUNE 2022 
Prepared By: Andrea Lovelace 
Date Prepared: June 30, 2022 
 

 

FY 20-21
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues May-21 Adjusted Budget May-22 Collected
General Fund 36,133,939$    47,578,007$        41,245,448$    86.69%
Utility Fund 17,620,868      21,737,995          18,552,316      85.35%
Downtown District Fund 93,563             95,174                 94,872             99.68%
Occupancy Tax Fund 939,527           1,231,797            997,677           80.99%
Stormwater Fund 1,458,528        2,483,751            1,767,696        71.17%
     Total 56,246,426$    73,126,724$        62,658,008$    85.68%

Expenditures
General Fund 34,967,790$    47,578,007$        36,688,057$    77.11%
Utility Fund 14,703,562      21,737,995 13,993,716 64.37%
Downtown District Fund 26,895             95,174 68,800             72.29%
Occupancy Tax Fund 954,639           1,231,797 988,590 80.26%
Stormwater Fund 1,237,797        2,483,751 1,777,826 71.58%
     Total 51,890,683$    73,126,724$        53,516,990$    73.18%

FY 20-21
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

May-21 Adjusted Budget May-22 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 18,061,703$    18,976,284$        18,836,004$    99.26%
Charges for Services 22,953,128      24,550,548          23,667,385      96.40%
Revenue Other Agencies 10,392,536      19,982,399          11,133,174      55.71%
Other Revenues 1,792,102        5,065,258            5,813,606        114.77%
Fund Balance -                   1,344,394            -                   0.00%
Shared Services 3,046,957        3,207,840            3,207,840        100.00%
     Total 56,246,426$    73,126,724$        62,658,008$    85.68%

Expenditures
Labor 26,389,342$    32,577,874$        26,321,322$    80.80%
Non-Labor 25,501,342      40,548,850          27,195,668      67.07%
     Total 51,890,683$    73,126,724$        53,516,990$    73.18%

FY 20-21 Actual Total 
Collections Actual May-22 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 44,690$           12,398$               23,623$           
Surplus 58,361$           3$                         141,647$         

FY 21-22

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 21-22

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



FIRE DEPARTMENT  
June 2022   
Prepared By: Ron Stempien  
Date Prepared: July 5, 2022 
 

    

 The cause of fire incidents was determined 72.3% of the time. 27.7% of fire incidents were classified as 
undetermined or still under investigation.   

  

 The average response time of first arriving unit was 4:41.   
  

 The full response within 8 minutes occurred 98.2% of all calls.   
  

 68.4% of Inspection Violations were cleared within 90 days.   

  

 There were 0 Civilian injuries, 0 Civilian deaths, 0 Fire Service injuries, and 0 Fire Service deaths.   

  

 The American Red Cross assisted 0 families due to displacement because of fire damage.   

 
  Fire prevention and community service activities including: Car Seat Safety Checks with Safe Kids of Wayne 

County, Sprinkler Fun Days, 10th Annual Cruise the Neuse, Station Tour with NOVA Group Home, Health 

Fair at O’Berry Hospital, and Safety Day at Cherry Hospital. We reached 92 Adults and 62 Children with fire 

prevention materials.  
  

 
 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD,  Service Calls, Haz-Mat Calls, Grass 
Fires and Unauthorized Burning.  

    

1  

2022 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 216 195 226 231 236 264       228 1368 

Structure Fires: 5 6 8 5   4 1       5 29 

EMS Calls: 79 78 80 92 83 86       83 498 

Vehicle Accidents: 22 23 22 26 32 38       27 163 

Fire Alarms: 44 35 48 53 63 56       50 299 

Other: 66 53 68 55 54 83       63 379 

Training Hours: 2757 2806 2884 2260 1704 1715       2354 14126 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 0 0 4 3 5 2       2 14 

Inspections: 132 123 153 136 143 187       146 874 

2021 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 234 173 227 214 251 240 227 229 240 244 265 237 232 2781 
Structure Fires: 6 4 6 4 3 3 3 5 6  2 7 6 5 55 

EMS Calls: 89 68 87 83 106 106 84 104 86 86 82 88 89 1069 
Vehicle Accidents: 36 30 34 35 35 40 33 33 33 40 40 33 35 422 

 
Fire Alarms: 

49 31 41 40 42 41 54 45 56 52 65 38 46 554 

Other: 54 40 59 52 65 50 53 42 59 64 71 72 57 681 
Training Hours: 3006 3155 3010 2730 2029 1894 1633 1833 1600 1923 1591 1075 2123 25479 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 1 0 1 0 1 6 3 3 2 4 2 1 2 24 
Inspections: 121 157 217 172 180 237 194 204 179 160 155 109 174 2085 



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES   
June 2022 
Date Prepared:  July 5, 2022    
 
 
Human Resources  

• Compiled & submitted reports for FY2022/2023 budget information including 5% COLA, 
reclassifications, and police & fire incentives. 

• Provided assistance for PAF completions for pay increases for fire, police, reclassifications. 
• Implementation of Unified Self Service in Neogov to help with a centralized new dashboard. 
• Updated salary schedule 
• Reviewed and Assisted with updated job descriptions and salary for Paramount and GEC. 
• Revised Succession Plan 
• Implementing 401K/457 Electronic Enrollment 
• Verifying completion of all May 2022 Diversity: Seeking Commonality (Employee Version) Training 

to all departments to be completed by May 31, 2022 
• Completed Safe and Health Grilling Demonstration presented by Wellness Committee on  

June 9, 2022 
• Provided CPR Training – Parks & Recreation 
• Preparing for New Hire Orientation scheduled for June 20, 2022 
• Preparing for Health/Benefits Fair scheduled for October 6, 2022 
• Preparing for BCBS State Health Plan 2023 Open Enrollment scheduled for October 10 – 28, 2022 

 
Safety   

• June City Hall Fire Extinguisher / Defibrillator Inspections. 
• June 2 – OSHA Health Consultation Visit at Parks and Recreation. 
• June 6 – Incident investigation involving City lawn mower and civilians vehicle. 
• June 13 – Buck’s Fire Service inspections at City Hall 
• June 14 – Safety Training at Park Maintenance 
• June 14 - On site safety with Crews from D&C on George Street closing and operations. 
• June 16 – OSHA Health Consultation Visit at Compost, Water Plant, WRF 
• June 20 – New Hire Safety orientation at Event Center 
• June 20 – Safety and Accident Review Committee Meeting. Heard two cases. No points assigned. 
• June 30 – Investigation how to remove birds out of the PW garage area. Working with Allan Weeks 

on solution. 
• Updating the Hazard Communication policy for Compost. 
• Finalizing the return paperwork from the OSHA Consultative visit. 
• June 14 – Accident Investigation at PW garage 
• June 25 – Accident investigation involving Police Officer. 
• June 27 – Accident investigation involving solid waste employee. 
• Field Safety with crews and for private contractors 
• Daily office duties 



2 

Occupational Health  
The Occupational Health Nurse continues to provide guidance regarding CDC guidelines and COVID 
protocols.  Provided CPR and First Aid training for Parks & Recreation. There were 60 clinic visits this 
month. There were 0 random Non-DOT drug screens, 0 random DOT and 0 breathalyzer (all negative) and 
0 DOT post-accident drug screen this month.   
 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

423 427 418 417 420 427       422 

Employees –            
Part Time 

116 111 113 117 137 143       123 

Total Employees 539 536 531 534 557 570       545 
Male  411 412 409 411 420 428       415 
Female 128 124 122 123 137 142       129 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hispanic or 
Latino) 

321 324 321 325 332 
 

340       327 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

195 190 188 187 200 204       194 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

18 17 17 17 19 19       18 

Ethnicity – Asian 1 1 1 1 1 2       1 
Ethnicity – Other 4 4 4 4 5 5       4 
Vacancies  24 25 30 31 31 33       29 
Applications 308 179 386 215 251 392       289 

Applicant Notices 141 147 90 90 230 173       145 
New Hires  6 4 9 9 7 9       7 
Promotions 3 0 4 4 3 3       3 
Resignations 6 10 9 9 3 8       8 
Retirements  2 2 2 2 1 2       2 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

2 1 0 0 0 1       2 

Turnover Rate  2.4% 3.0% 2.6% 2.1% 1.0% 2.6%       2.3% 
Vehicle Accidents 5 1 4 1 4 2       3 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

0 
 

0 0 0 0 0       0 

FFCRA Leave  76 7 1 1 9 14       18 

Telework 11 11 11 11 11 12       11 

 
Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  
 
 
 



3 

 
2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 
Total Employment 569 566 562 562 557 554 550 550 544 537 534 

 
537 553 

Vacancies  12 8 26 21 18 19 21 26 23 22 27 24 20 
Applications 183 119 203 245 267 299 233 150 164 204 173 131 203 
Applicant Notices 214 203 167 66 71 177 94 140 106 196 17 

 
1 132 

 
New Hires  8 2 1 3 4 3 2 8 1 3 1 9 3 

Resignations 1 2 3 3 6 6 7 8 6 8 3 4 5 
Retirements  0 3 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 1 2 1.00 
Terminations  0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 .27 
Turnover Rate  .18% .88

% 
.89% .53

% 
1.44

% 
1.08% 1.09

% 
1.45 1.10 1.49 .19 

 
.74 

 
.94% 

Vehicle Accidents 2 5 2 7 3 1 3 1 0 3 4 
 

2 3 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

0 4 2 3 5 4 3 0 0 0 0 0 2.1 

FFCRA Leave  41 5 5 3 5 5 2 1 20 9 2 5 9 

Telework 27  28 25 23 13 12 11 11 11 11 11 11 17 

 
Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  



 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
June 2022 
Prepared By: Scott Williams 
Date Prepared: July 07, 2022 
 
 

• Provided Wi-Fi, Drone Coverage and Tech Support for Freedom Fest. 
• Configured new computes for first install cycle; installed . 
• Collected video footage for GPD and GFD. 
• Reviewed interview room setup and potential changes. 
• Setup Wi-Fi for Getac in car system. 
• Installed new cable service line for Public Safety Complex  
• Repaired Kiosk at the Hub. 
• Prepared for wireless and supported WiFi at Juneteenth. 
• Repaired UPS for GPD Vice. 
• Setup cameras and display for DGDC. 
• Setup streaming device and screen for displays at DGDC. 
• Repaired sewer robot issues. 
• Installed new wireless on John Street Parking Area. 

 
 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

379 353 430 362 451 503       413 2,478 

Tickets 
Closed 

310 304 
 

466 398 392 540       402 2,410 

Open  
Tickets 

474 523 487 451 510 473       486  

 
 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

562 564 634 468 473 500 530 526 374 439 348 280 
 

475 5,698 

Tickets 
Closed 

447 615 612 436 528 571 490 547 384 388 306 327 471 5,651 

Open  
Tickets 

473 422 444 476 421 350 390 369 359 410 
 

452 405 414  

 



 

 
 

1 

INSPECTIONS 
June 2022 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 07/01/22 
 
The valuation of all permits issued for June totaled $9,578,228.  While Covid-19 is still a major concern for our local 
economy, development has taken an upward trend compared to the past several years. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $41,416.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $4,020 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $1,270. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $22,160. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 730 inspections for the month.  During the month of June, five (5) business inspections 
were completed.  A total of 344 permits were issued for the month.    Forty-eight (48) plan reviews were completed 
for June. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $3.9 $11.1 $5.4 $6.7 $5.1 $9.6 $7.0
All Bldgs $ (M) $2.1 $9.1 $3.9 $5.0 $2.4 $7.6 $5.0
Residential $ (K) $813 $3M $472 $4.4M $341 $1.3M $1.7M
Misc $ (M) $1.8 $2 $1.4 $1.7 $2.7 $2.0 $1.9
Permit Fee $ (K) $39 $43 $43 $35 $43 $41 $41
Inspections 460 551 654 614 584 730 599
Permits Issued 258 281 288 281 336 344 298
Plan Reviews 38 66 79 39 45 48 53

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $7.9 $18.2 $6 $4.4 $5.9 $6.4 $7.5 $4.9 $8.4 $7.7 $6.5 $4.8 $7.4
All Bldgs $ (M) $6.8 $16.3 $2.5 $1.1 $4.8 $3.9 $4.3 $3.7 $5.7 $5.3 $4.7 $2.9 $5.2
Residential $ (K) $1.2M $900 $1.2M $250 $1.1M $3.1M $1.4M $1.M $480 $2.5M $1.7M $428 $1.3M
Misc $ (M) $1 $1.9 $3.5 $3.4 $1.1 $2.5 $3.2 $1.1 $2.7 $2.4 $1.8 $2.0 $2.2
Permit Fee $ (K) $26.6 $32.5 $57 $34 $21 $38 $29 $26 $36 $45 $28 $24 $33.1
Inspections 398 462 625 538 483 424 483 472 590 681 529 583 522
Permits Issued 215 295 359 296 254 308 324 267 311 332 262 242 289
Plan Reviews 48 94 71 68 45 51 59 50 45 45 93 26 58



 

 
 

1 

 
PARAMOUNT & GEC 
June 2022 
Prepared by: Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared 7/5/2022 

--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 
• June capacity unrestricted; masks not required. 
• June activity included 15 rental/use days, including 11 public performances. 
• June COVID-19 cancelled/rescheduled programming includes 0 days, 0 public perfs. 
• Staff attended two industry conferences this month: NCPC (Presenters), ADA (Dance) 
• Repairs and Maintenance works completed: New Carpet in Auditorium 

o In progress: Sound repairs, Roof, wheelchair lift, HVAC upgrade 
 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
 

Expenses –$72,730:   Labor - $26,687 / Operations – $5,136 /Artist&Renter Payout – $40,907 
Revenues - $55,513:      Tickets – $46,951 / Rentals- $5,258 / Concession- $3,304 
 

 
 

--------------GOLDSBORO EVENT CENTER-------------- 
• Transition from Paramount to GGC oversight of operation underway. 
• June activity consisted of 11 event rental days, including 2 non-revenue City events. 
• June cancellations/postponements due to COVID-19 & weather included 0 rental days. 
• Repairs and Maintenance in progress or under consideration:  

Landscaping, tree-trimming, front garden improvements, touch-up paint. Parking lot lighting 
improvements under consideration, substantial repair of side-entrance gutter area needed.  

 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
Expenses – $9,851: Labor - $7,014 / Operational – $2,837 
Revenues – $9,773:            Rental Bldg. - $7,128 / Rental Amenities - $1020 / F&B – $1,625 
City Use – $1350 Value of Non-revenue City use of facility - $1,350 

 
 

21-Jul 21-Aug 21-Sep 21-Oct 21-Nov 21-Dec 22-Jan 22-Feb 22-Mar 22-Apr 22-May 22-Jun FY 22 Total Average

Exp $53,123 $32,009 $38,135 $55,769 $47,860 $110,177 $69,919 $27,119 $73,052 $65,217 $56,198 $72,730 $701,308 $58,442

Rev $2,881 $11,843 $11,014 $14,718 $46,585 $85,238 $67,668 $10,947 $35,192 $57,493 $56,429 $55,513 $455,521 $37,960

Grants $0 $0 $76,235 $145,036 $110,636 $5,250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,800 $0 $341,957

20-Jul 20-Aug 20-Sep 20-Oct 20-Nov 20-Dec 21-Jan 21-Feb 21-Mar 21-Apr 21-May 21-Jun FY 21 Total Average

Exp $31,420 $29,780 $18,774 $23,883 $31,146 $49,123 $36,588 $26,876 $44,093 $52,183 $42,371 $91,817 $478,053 $39,838

Rev $1,218 <$633> $1,625 $635 $1,508 $2,260 $15,982 $4,697 $5,712 $8,874 $58,020 $69,591 $169,509 $14,126

21-Jul 21-Aug 21-Sep 21-Oct 21-Nov 21-Dec 22-Jan 22-Feb 22-Mar 22-Apr 22-May 22-Jun FY 22 Total Average

Exp $4,602 $10,442 $8,520 $15,505 $10,679 $11,547 $12,663 $8,556 $16,065 $9,890 $9,028 $9,851 $127,348 $10,612

Rev $0 $5,673 $6,192 $9,203 $11,925 $4,331 $8,047 $4,597 $1,130 $12,576 $12,955 $9,773 $86,402 $7,200

City $2,400 $0 $2,205 $4,550 $775 $3,775 $0 $4,145 $3,020 $2,700 $0 $1,350 $24,920 $2,077

20-Jul 20-Aug 20-Sep 20-Oct 20-Nov 20-Dec 21-Jan 21-Feb 21-Mar 21-Apr 21-May 21-Jun FY 21 Total Average

Exp $12,499 $13,295 $16,383 $7,931 $6,727 $14,807 $8,153 $11,245 $13,874 $7,339 $9,469 $14,556 $136,278 $11,356

Rev $0 <$3,694> $541 $6,894 $6,122 $12,067 <$1,732> $4,695 $5,778 $3,737 $5,168 $3,765 $43,941 $3,662

City $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,925 $850 $0 $0 $775 $775 $750 $1,250 $6,325 $527



 
1 
 

Parks & Recreation 
June - 2022 
Prepared By: Stephanie Martin/Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared – 07/5/22 

 
 

• Our Summer Day Camps and Summer Sports Camps started this month.  All of our camps were at capacity 
for each of the weeks they were held this month 
 

• Mina Weil Pool and Peacock Pool had a combined 3,000+ visitors during this month 
 

• Sensory Swim, open swim time for those with sensory sensitivities is held on Tuesdays at Peacock Pool 
starting Tuesday, June 21st through Tuesday, August 16th – 10 participants this month  
 

• Goldsboro Golf Course again hosted tournaments during this month: June 3rd – 48 players and             
June 24th  – 45 players, were two of the tournaments 
 

• Cruise the Neuse, an event where participants in canoes and kayaks paddle a section of the Neuse River 
was held on Saturday, June 4th – 110 participants 
 

• Par 3 Thursdays continued throughout the month of June – 44 participants 
 

• A public meeting was held at Herman Park Center on June 23rd – this meeting was held to give the public 
a chance to come and express their opinion on what they want the future Ash Street to look like 
 

• Youth Spring Sports of Soccer, T-Ball, Baseball and Softball finally wrapped up in June – season went long 
due to inclement weather delays 
 

• The parking lot of our Bryan Multi-Sports Complex (MSCX) was used a viewing area for the general public 
to view the fireworks shot from Seymour Johnson Air Force Base – 350 vehicles / 1,400 participants  

 
• Park Maintenance Staff continue to clean all park restrooms and the restrooms at the HUB daily 

 
• Park Maintenance Staff continue to tend to the landscaping on Center Street 

 
• As of July 2021, expenditures at all locations on the following report now reflect ALL STAFF associated 

with/assigned to that location – Full-time staff, Part-time staff and Seasonal staff 
 



 

 
2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Herman Park Recreation Center                            
Program Revenue $1,910 $520 $720 $978 $2,050  $27,880             $5,677 

Rental Revenue  $735 $1,475 $1,530 $2,350 $520  $1,366             $1,329 

Facility Usage 250 189 243 188 159  1475             418 

Expenditures $7,135 $5,287 $6,294 $6,126 $5,142  $8,344             $6,388 

                            

WA Foster Recreation Center                           

Program Revenue $895 $295 $505 $430 $2,453  $3,750             $1,388 

Rental Revenue $900 $2,820 $1,800 $3,058 $2,163  $1,653             $2,066 

Facility Usage 1595 1565 1565 2051 1814  2,495             1848 

Expenditures $18,218 $18,684 $16,911 $16,186 $12,952  $13,819             $16,129 

                            

T.C. Coley Community Center                           

Rental Revenue $518 $450 $518 $518 $880  $948             $639 

Expenses $1,848 $0 $0 $0 $80  $0             $322 

                            

Specialized Recreation                           

Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0  $0             $0 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0  $0             $0 

Facility Usage 95 119 152 58 360  220             168 

Expenditures $5,865 $5,592 $5,921 $5,620 $4,039  $4,761             $5,300 

                            

Senior Programs & Pools                           

Program Revenue $105 $105 $105 $105 $1,807  $8,484             $1,785 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0  $0             $0 

Facility Usage 232 376 375 1013 1243  3492             1122 

Expenditures $1,027 $2,257 $1,874 $1,722 $2,437  $11,092             $3,402 

                            

Athletics, Field &                           

Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX                           

Program Revenue $5,555 $16,145 $10,338 $3,319 $19,384  $2,790             $10,948 

Field / Shelter Rental $ $0 $0 $0 $150 $75  $0             $45 

Facility Usage 10673 14935 23858 29346 44914  36785             26752 

Expenditures $22,418 $15,209 $16,761 $19,436 $34,794  $10,597             $19,870 

                            

Golf Course                           

Revenues $15,988 $33,437 $50,876 $63,756 $68,934  $61,883             $49,146 

Expenditures $31,667 $37,653 $43,486 $35,649 $38,279  $49,110             $39,307 

Rounds of Golf 433 1296 1724 2502 1936  1976             1645 

Net -$15,680 -$4,216 $7,390 $28,107 $30,655  $12,773             $9,840 

                            

Special Events                           

Revenues / Sponsorships $0 $0 $0 $0 $0  $1,975             $329 

Participation 0 0 0 1600 0  110             285 

Expenditures $2,013 $110 $110 $285 $0  $1,599             $686 

                            



 

TOTAL REVENUE $26,606 $55,247 $66,392 $74,664 $98,266 $110,729 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $71,984 

TOTAL EXPENSES $90,191 $84,792 $91,357 $85,024 $97,723 $99,322 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $91,402 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR    $431,904                      

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR  $584,409            

 
**Expenditures include part-time labor cost, facility operational cost, and full-time labor cost.  Not included in 
expenditures is loan/bond payments and electricity for the areas with the exception of our Golf Course.  All of 
these costs are included for our Golf Course Expenditures. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 
AVG 

Herman Park Rec Center  
             Program Revenue $220 $530 $390 $230 $5,860 $1,250 $810 $410 $120 $305 $270 $150 $879 

Rental Revenue  $0 $330 $0 $1,110 $270 $750 $1,245 $170 $1,550 $1,350 $70 $1,035 $657 

Facility Usage 152 193 287 187 294 405 455 172 249 358 259 252 272 

Expenditures $3,487 $1,054 $1,538 $405 $384 $1304 $12,189 $15,981 $5,095 $4,812 $5,042 $9,172 $5,039 

              

WA Foster Rec Center              

Program Revenue $185 $190 $535 $195 $250 $2,110 $825 $140 $120 $85 $50 $120 $400 

Rental Revenue $450 $0 $285 $690 $2100 $1,200 $538 $1193 $1,110 $750 $3,100 $1,200 $1,058 

Facility Usage 660 924 1304 1,378 1,475 1,478 1,793 867 1043 983 1,171 1,308 1,199 

Expenditures $4,429 $2,992 $4,610 $8,413 $3,586 $7,447 $20,580 $25,305 $14,427 $19,173 $16,232 $22,925 $12,510 

              

T. C. Coley Community Center              

Rental Revenue $578 $450 $450 $585 $578 $578 $607 $578 $578 $705 $548 $578 $568 

Expenses $4,797 $1416 $0 $1,848 $0 $0 $0 $4041 $0 $0 $0 $1,989 $1,174 

              

Specialized Recreation              

Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42 $0 $0 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Facility Usage 0 73 92 0 5 31 $34 18 103 178 114 136 65 

Expenditures $1,048 $737 $1,049 $0 $0 $0 $461 $288 $2945 $5,523 $5,857 $8,599 $2,203 

              

Senior Programs & Pools              

Program Revenue $140 $140 $140 $140 $897 $4,707 $7,690 $2284 $140 $1,168 $140 $140 $1,477 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25 

Facility Usage 200 371 310 720 608 2,245 1,176 1,251 448 525 268 302 702 

Expenditures $1,591 $2435 $1,048 $1,642 $6,203 $13,483 $22,041 $17,647 $7,327 $762 $854 $1,992 $6,419 

              
Athletics, Field & 
Picnic Shelters, BMSC              

Program Revenue $1,550 $10,200 $14,891 $3,760 $7,185 $4,880 $9,056 $13,708 $1,755 $2,860 $21,090 $4,110 $7,920 

Field / Shelter Rental $ $400 $200 $1,675 $450 $1,555 $480 $1,305 $0 0 $750 $650 $2,400 $766 

Facility Usage 8,612 13,825 15,500 14,339 29,339 15,533 8,476 7,525 11,253 43,298 30,123 30,123 18,996 

Expenditures $6,866 $9.515 $11,471 $28,210 $33,191 $33,230 $23,614 $24,926 $17,977 $72,084 $21,726 $21,976 $25,399 

              

Golf Course              

Revenues $36,583 $9,209 $53,613 $66,926 $72,876 $54,559 $61,379 $59,850 $66.788 $62,129 $34,965 $53,716 $52,716 

Expenditures $32,349 $35,969 $36,825 $40,143 $54,594 $67,883 $32,255 $48,088 $50,243 $38,778 $38,890 $43,335 $43,281 

Rounds of Golf 486 596 1,714 2,120 2,641 2,421 2,556 2,819 2,097 2,232 2,087 1752 1,960 

Net $4.235 -26,760 $16,788 $26,782 $18,282 -13,325 $29,124 $11,762 $16,545 $23,351 -3,925 $10,361 $13,895 

              

Special Events              

Sponsorships / Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,666 $979 $170 $0 $475 $0 $0 $358 

Participation 0 0 434 0 0 153 0 44 0 50 30 6200 576 

Expenditures $0 0 $171 $110 $110 $1,980 $1,538 $110 $110 $1,630 $110 $370 $520 

              

TOTAL REVENUE $40,106 $21,249 $71,979 $74,086 $91,571 $73,260 $84,734 $78,503 $72,161 $69,902 $60,925 $63,449 $66,827 

TOTAL EXPENSES $54,567 $54,118 $56,712 $80,77, $98,069 $125,327 $112,612 $136,276 $98,014 $142,762 $88,711 $110,378 $96,545 

TOTAL REVENUE  $801,924            

TOTAL EXPENSES  $1,158,537            

 
 
 



General Tasks

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level

Site Plans 0 0 3 4 0 6 13 1
Subdivison 0 0 2 2 0 4 8 1

Planning/City Council

Rezonings 0 2 4 3 5 2 16 1
Special Use 3 1 0 1 2 1 8 1

Historic District Commission

Commission Review 1 1 1 0 2 0 5 0
Staff Review 1 2 1 2 1 1 8 1

Grass Cutting 

# Lots
0 0 0 0 0 85 85 11

Grass Cutting 

Payments
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0  $0  $0 $0

Tagged Vehicles 48 25 18 13 3 7 114 10

Illegal Signs Removed
56 92 102 202 88 127 667 56

Bags of Litter Picked Up
202 165 222 286 198 400 1473 123

Code Enforcement 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
MONTHLY REPORT – June 2022 
Prepared by:  Rachael Smith

Planning staff reviewed and signed off on all commercial and residential building and sign permits.   Staff continues to prepare for upcoming 
meetings and has overseen contracted projects for the ADA Transition Plan, a marketing contract for GWTA and landscaping maintenance for 
Welcome to Goldsboro signs and enhancement areas. Staff continues compliance with the NCGS Legislative 160D updates. On‐going projects 

include tree and stump removal, preparation of transportation‐related documents and preparation of case reports.

Planning Dept.



 

 
  

1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
June 2022 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West          
Date Prepared:  July 12, 2022  
 
Total Part I Crime (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle Theft, 
and Arson) for June 2022 were 191, compared to 151 for June 2021. 
 
Property with an estimated value of $361,647 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $152,676 was recovered. 
 
Officers arrested 94 people and issued 189 citations during the month. There were 17 drug-related 
charges.  
 
There was 1 report(s) of assault(s) on officer(s).  

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 
2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total AVG 

OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 1  2 0 0 1            4 0.66 
Rape 1 2  1  3 1 1             9 1.5 
Robbery 1 2     6  3 5 3           20 3.3 
Aggravated Assault 11 12  20  31 27  20             121 20.2 
Breaking & Entering 25 19  18  26 19  28            135 22.5 
Larceny 92 86        95 118 94  117            602 100.3 
Motor Vehicle Theft 6  6 7   5 15  21          60 10 
Arson 0 1 0   1  0  0           2 0.3 
TOTALS 136 129 149  187  161  191            953 158.8 

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total AVG 
OFFENSE 
Homicide 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 1  1  0  0 6 0.5 
Rape 3 0 1 2 1 0 1 0 0 2 1 1 12 1.0 
Robbery 7 3 2 1 8 3 5 4 1 5 0 1 40 3.3 
Aggravated Assault 10 11 10 24 12 13 15 18 16 9 18 8 164 13.6 
Breaking & Entering 26 19 18 30 25 34 21 23 15 12 16 17 256 21.3 
Larceny 88 70 87 83 114 90 90 116 99 96 92 119 1144 95.3 
Motor Vehicle Theft 8 9 5 7 11 10 7 7 12 7 6 8 97 8.1 
Arson 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 3 0.3 
TOTALS 143 112 124 147 172 151 140 169 144 133 133 154 1722 143.4 

 

 
Revenue collected for June 2022 included:    

 Police Reports   $ 

 
 

 285.00  
 Fingerprints   $    210.00  
 Special Events                                                                                 $      25.00  
             Total     $   520.00   
        



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
June 
Prepared By: Robert Sherman 
Date Prepared: June 29, 2022 
 
Water Treatment Plant 

• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. 
o  WTP is advertising for a WTP Operator. 
o WTP is back to disinfecting water by chloramines. 
o Results from core sampling are in for the concrete structures at the WTP   

Water Reclamation Facility 
• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been performing normal since September 

2021. The average daily flow for June is 6.56-MGD.  
o All of the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well, with the exception of the 117, Little 

Cherry, and New Hope pump station bar screens, impacts from high flows from 2021. 
o Remote communication with the obsolete telemetry system continues to be prepared for 

an upgrade. Failed telemetry radios have delayed emergency response, but no violations 
have occurred during each event. Monies were approved with ARP funds to repair.  

o Two uncertified operator is working towards certification.  
o Currently advertising for Three WRF Operator position.  One retirement and one 

resignation. 
Compost Facility 

• Advertising for one Compost Operator Position. 
 
Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average 
daily flows for each month. The results for Compost sold are not in for the month. 
 

2022 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 5.608 5.487 5.60 5.53 5.91 6.15       5.714 
Sewer** 9.15 9.32 8.63 7.86 7.57 6.56       8.18 

Compost 165 972 663 1,287 995        816 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 

2021 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 5.878 6.348 6.000 5.996 6.619 6.066 6.149 5.872 5.854 5.660 5.70 5.64 5.981 
Sewer** 16.73 19.28 14.68 10.97 8.61 12.99 12.74 12.44 7.98 7.00 6.52 6.69 11.38 
Compost 297 109 733 1406 902 529 286 133 283 76 472 127 420 

*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 
 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
9.1 4.7 9.0 14.8 12.9 15.3 11.0
2.3 1.9 2.2 1.9 3.5 7.1 3.2
33 37 25 26 19 27 27.8
20 19 20 14 25 17 19.2
2 2 2 1 8 3 3.0
12 27 16 6 12 15 14.7

41 53 42 35 38 48 42.8
32 15 55.5 74.2 92.8 65.6 55.9
0 10 39.2 84 195.9 226.7 92.6

295 200 257 212 224 244 238.7
49$       48$       57$       52$       117$     141$     77.3

1.07 0.91 1.11 0.98 1.04 1.09 1.034
20 38 0 0 0 0 9.7
0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.9 0.566

4 5 4 2 2 5 3.7

0 36 23 16 13 9 16.2
65 51 116 14 56 15 52.8
78.2 156.1 177.2 127.8 166.28 191 149.4
0.14 0.00 3.00 0.00 0.20 0.31 0.608
0.00 0.40 0.00 0.00 19.28 44.50 10.696
6 2 2 2 3 3 3.0

4.5 11.4 2.3 14.9 5.4 13.1 4.5 7.2 2.3 12.3 9 12.1 8.3
8.6 6.6 3.6 2.3 3.1 2.0 1.0 2.4 15.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 4.0
17 27 22 22 21 17 20 24 26 37 35 24 24.3
18 11 13 27 14 13 17 18 18 21 9 10 15.8
9 4 6 8 4 3 1 2 6 2 3 6 4.5
18 14 12 28 34 27 18 26 22 18 16 24 21.4

52 45 44 42 40 41 46 47 35 52 46 51 45.1
0 0 60 127 95 86.1 98.2 98 144 77.8 43.6 16.5 70.5
0 10 41 94.6 85.4 149.6 126.5 122.9 121 56.2 0 0 67.3

294 288 286 263 243 248 310 280 198 257 224 215 258.8
48$       50$       56$       51$       40$       53$       65$       59$       52$       50$       49$       51$       52.0

0.92 0.91 1.08 1.09 0.93 1.16 1.13 1.22 0.99 0.97 0.98 1.01 1.0
97 82 89 94 81 97 58 38 12 7 20 58.04 61.2
0.5 0.5 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.5 1.0 0.6

11 1 8 4 7 4 6 5 5 7 2 3 5.3

0 5 30 31 26 19 6 8 11 10 6 14 13.8
83 65 39 65 18 34 57 39 23 45 30 74 47.7
175 81 120.8 178 117 135 137 125 101.8 76.6 92.9 107.1 120.6
17.33 0.84 2.16 0.00 1.44 3.05 0.00 0.82 0.00 0.20 0.46 0.00 2.2
14.00 0.48 0.00 0.28 12.82 14.02 0.18 1.17 9.45 7.25 0.00 0.00 5.0
1 3 2 4 5 6 9 2 2 3 3 3 3.6

Public Works Department
June 2022
Prepared by:  Chad Edge
Date Prepared: 05 July 2022

2021

Cemetery Funerals

Utility Cut Repairs
Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

et
 &

 S
to

rm

Streets Swept (miles)
Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage
Total Work Orders

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 
Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

2022

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 
Waste

Recyclables (tons)
Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
 &

 
St

or
m

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage Total Work Orders

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Buildings & Grounds: Multiple electrical, plumbing, structural, etc. repairs Citywide. Supported two Center St Jam events, Dillard 
Homecoming, street side banner displays, etc.  Grounds crews are mowing lots and right of ways on a regular rotation; 
completed 80 linear feet of sidewalk clearing.

Distribution & Collections: Call duty responded to 13 after hour calls- total of 20.5 hours; Completed 180 work orders. 

Streets & Stormwater: Call duty responded to 3 after hour calls- total of 3-hrs; Removed City Entrance sign on NC 111 South; 
Completed new pipe installation on Vine Street, currently working to abandon old pipe; Assisted Leaf & Limb crews; Cleaned 11
catch basins ahead of GIS mapping team.



 

 
 

1 

Travel and Tourism 
June 2022 
Prepared by: Amanda Justice and Amber Herring  
Date Prepared 6/27/22 
 

● Inquiries were fulfilled for the month of June by the TTO—1147 e-inquiries. 

● Total hotel revenue generated in May was $2,244,186, which is up 7.7% YOY. June revenue not yet 

released. 

● For the month, organic sessions made up 44.56% of overall website traffic.  The average page session is up 

10.43 % YOY, the average time on our site increased 54.11% YOY, and the bounce rate has dropped 10.32%.  

The top landing page is the Top 50 things to do in Goldsboro-Wayne County.  

● T&T made an offer for the Communications and Creative Services Manager.  She starts July 27th. 

● T&T attended New Hire Training on 6/20. 

● T&T attended the NC Coast Host Board meeting in Greenville on 6/23. 

 

           June tax collections have not been released. 

 

City Occupancy Tax Collections 

 

 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2021-22 $77, 369 $89,826 $83,501 $62,587 $81,019 $99,449 $62,630 $52,059 $71,272 $83,367 $84,805 $ $847,883 $77,080 

2020-21 $63,053 $79,612 $70,672 $86,804 $58,755 103,416 $65,157 $54,670 $61,336 $94,544 $75,710 $93,168 $906,897 $75,575 
 



S











o:

o

CCf6
s

UvamOQ) t
NEmN

nn00C11Lnti
La, 3Z

p

O

Um

C

L7  

X

O!  

T  OA

ate+ 

Z = 

Mc > 

U

a

ar

o

a

N

NC ' 
V

N

H

v

N

O

CA

Ii- V

O

V

GJ

GJ

O

N

N

CO=' 
a

rn

v

o: 

3

c

v

Z

N

O

U

NO

m

ut

C

C

CA

u

C

N

Q)

N

pLO

O

CU

N

3

LJ

mE
t

o

o
a

v

c

a

0

n

a

E> 

o

c

U

N

i

O

O

N
f

6

r

p

a

y

cLo

Ln

m

coo

co

O

o

O

m

aJLn
O

CAV

x

a

S

O

t

OO
X

O

LnO

d

O

Z

w

a

O

a

O

d

p .

N

0

Z

E

R

O

v

r`

nC

n

O

v

O

u

O

C

GJ

Q

O

N

O

CALA
4

O

m

41

U

Q

CA

C

CL

O

N

V1

V) 

LJ

a

L "

a

V) a

tC

Cp

w

p

O

O

AJ

4J

J

CA

VV) 

m

4J

CJ

d

O

N

U

CC

IJ

L

M4J
m

u

0

u

N

ai

c

QV

M

N

t

0

L

m

f6

4J

N

v

fd (, ++ 

i

a

M

u

Z

a

m+ 

v

0

0

s

a) 

3

M

V

U

M

E

E

O

J

p

U

C

O

Om
O

C

aN

uL

a

OO

LJ

p

aj

W

4— 
O

O

6

U

V) 

N

OLA

6

L

Ln

4JL

W

N

U

a- 

L

E

Q

a

Ln

a

J

o

v

v

3

N

CA

O

a

W

m

W

f° 

W

0)• 

L

o

m

O

p

C

L

u

O

D

C

ut

O

V

O

z

O

a

4- 

V

O

CA

E_ 

O

C

L+ 

0

m

OO

O

aj" 

N

cu

O 

ate+ ++ 
p

O

p

C

E

s

Vfc_ 

4J

Cv

4J

V) 

4Jn

L

O

CO

V

c

L0

w

C

U

a

0+, 

O0

U

O

p

Ln

Lnm

2

L

N

O

N

W

4— 

v

CAV
Z

c

d4

i

V— 
O

G1t

Vf

O

G+
JJ

a

C

CAC

O

C

O

CA

a

O

Vf

O

aE

V

O

W

u

W

J

M

Cova

X

aj

4— 

a) 

0pp

O

C

L

V' 

O

O

a 

E

U

o •° 

t

O

WOC

p

L

m

a

s

O

U

a- v

U

o

Ca

a

t

L

VI ++ 

t

a F

a

ca, 

L

M

v X

cu

v= 

3

Wt

Lo

a, 

4— 

vt

vt

r' 

o_ 

U

W

r

m

a

U

a. 

c

J

p

J

o

J

t

m

E 

oc

v

vi

v, 

J

V

a

a

o

v

v

w

w

e

E

w

m

w

3

w

f° 

c

w° 

C

w

M

w

3

w °

j

L- 

G= 

C

C

p

W

O

N

w

M

W

W

W

w

UJ

CU

4 

a

c

cu

m

O

O

a

a
4- 

C7

c

O

a

p

O

v

CA

E

s

L

V

N

p

O

4— 

p

0

m

U

U
1- 

W

J

u

E

m

0

4— 

N

U

o:

o

CCf6sUvamO
Q) tNEmN

nn00C11LntiL
a, 

3Z

p

O

Um

C

L7  

X

O!  

T  OA

ate+ 

Z = 

Mc > 

U

a

ar

o

a

N

NC ' 

V

N

H

v

N



T





U











NNN

M

a

m

M (

L) 

L) 

c ++ 

Ln

c

U

m

4- 

a

m

O -

0

O

O

do

o

c

N

c

3 +; 

O-

0

a

v

n

0

mv '^ 

c

w

m

t

t

m  

C

m

V) +

1  +; 

O

L  

o

Z > 

m

nj _ 

au _ 

c

O

u

c

c

oU

t

m

L

LQ

O

m

m

c

co

u

Z

c

v

c

v + 

m

Q

U

O

p

O

U

CO

p

m _ 

v> 

aJ

0

U

L

Z

w

p

m

p

N

m +, 

O

O

v

m

e ++ 

m

t

p

A

v> 

47

C

t ++ 

m

e

fl- 

m *' 

m

O

c

m +

r ' 

L +

J

V) 

y

O

J

of

O

O +' 

cn

S "

a

m

O

U

c= ) 

O

cco

on

a 

3 '

A. +, 

m

m

U

aJ

U

m

Q-

a

o

O

O

c

a

CU

c +' 

CO  

N "

a -

a

aJ

C

U

a, 

c

C7

0 (

D

No

c

0

o

L

a

v

a, 

c

w

41

to

a

m - '

a

a1

U

O "

a `- 

J

O

al

S

L

c

4— 

O `

n

w
i -

i

4J

N

O

N

N

aJ "

a

c

0

aJ

E •

O

i— 

3c
o

o> 

a

4

J

v

a

O

v

0 — > 

m •

r

m + 

dA

U

a

v

Z) 

41

0

c '

a '

a

c

O

A

m

c

c  

u

Z

a% • 

m

m

m -

O

1

U

U  

U '

N

m .

M

LnL
aJ

O

v

CU

H

L

O

aC)  `

n

S -

0

C7

J

4+ +

L.+ 

w

m

L

p

J

4o _ 

O

t

4J _ 

a) 

C_ 

m , 

i

N

o

X

Vf _ 

p

OU

p

c

U  

S

D

E

to

L

a
y +

r + = 

C

m

L

O

W

O >' 

c _

m -

0

cu

O '^ 

n

0

O

L

m

a . 

m

U' 

C

L +, 

a 

n

OA

E

t

a1

aJ

OA +' 

E

L

in

O

U

E

C

m

a +

J

a ._ 

v

a) 

w

c

O

c

p

c-

0

O

V

Ln

O

a) 

2

bo

m

a

cn

t '

p

c

w

aJ

m

N

U >' _ 

s

U

E •

O

a7

L +

J

L

OJ

m

m ++ '

in

a) 

co

ca

In

cNa

m

a

p

p

N> 

c

0

U

O > 

c `

u ++ 

vCL
m

U

cp> > 

0

m

cc

c

o ,

n

E

t

p

0

a 

Z (

9

Q> 

L

N

U

c

U '

L

c

3

f

6

dD

U >- 

w

m

H

O *, 

Op • 

O '

a

fab

D

O

c

of

N

N

m

p

U

c

Ln

O .

3 *=' 

Z

m

dl ++ 

A
t

if "

a

J

L

m

aJ `

n

of

O •

c

OL

4- - 

U

Q

OD

m

C

m

m

U

0

S

m

a, 

0 -

0

p - 

c

o

N

N

ON 

O

p = 

c

c .

y

Z

W '

a

aJ

Co — '

a

O ` 

c

v 

p

a

a] 

aJ

V) 

a "

a + 

C

7 •

N

aJ

S

U

O +, .

c

C

to

m

m

O

4- 

Wm
of .

c

m

to

a

L ` "_

a 

O

p '

Ln ` 

O

N

c

m

a) 

m

U

c

v

v

a

Z (

D

c

S

m

a

a 

0 > 

L. 

a — 

LU

is

O

0

O . 

a

v

0

V)

CL

u (

V

O  

N

OJ _ 

ON

O 

U

N

m

m

i6

Lto
aJ

Vf

cu

a

o

2

0cif

p

m . + '

a

x

v

CU

tibio >

a

p ° 

o

f ; 

owc

O .

0

m

m +' 

U

p

U

O

U - 

C7 °.

o +' }' 

a

U ` +'  

O

v

1 '

a

N

U

c

m

w

aJ

a) 

L

aJ

c

0

v

a) 

v

ar

m

c

t

o

ao, 

Qs
U ) 

w -

a

4

4

a +'

c•+ +

s+ '

o  

t

c$

o

O

f° + 

Z

N }, 

x

LU
4' 

z

p +' 

V) 

p

V) "

a

V) 

c

V) 

p

V) 

V) 

t

Ln _

N ++ 

J

w

p

Z

LU

e 

t " 

c

w

L

w

X

w

m

w

CL

w 

w

w

U

p

FS- 

H

p

s

t

N

0o

aJ > 

O ++ 

q0

a+ 

S

m

7

m

oc

O

w ,

n

oC

m

oc

w

N

N

a

a

w .

Q

w

w = 

w

w

w +, 

w +

J

w

0 +

s, 

E

E

ei

v

V

a

m

2

2 (

U

S

c

S

S

c

2

2

U

p

O

o

O

c

O

CU

4- '

y  

0

v

H  

d4

Z

is

r

i

C7 

i

N

ii

N

4- 

0-

0

L

4o

Z

C

a

O

m

in

cCA
U

Ecu
v

Q

m . 

E

m

Oto

c

0

c

a` 

E

O

s

o

0 ' 

o

m

c

U

m +

J

o

a

u

U

N

4- 

m

U

L

0

U

U

N

Ua) 

v

V' 

N

mO

Q

J



V











PL

Y

a

Q

QJ

W

aZ

Ja

L

Omoa

m

0Q= 

N

W

O CCC

ON

C 

Z

Z

p

ZZ

a

O

Z

E

w

m
VZ

ww
2

co

a

a

OU

Z

v

ao

OC7

0

Z

Qd

O

2

w

a

Z

F- 

o

Z
E

LLO
O

v

N

PL

Y

L12

Q

QJ

aJ

U

a

L

4r

UN
1

v

C7

N

f6L

a

75

ao

o

c

v

4-

1

c

L

O

C

O

f0

O

M

O

O

ON

EOL

N

0: 

aJ

ca

O

Q

N

I- 

aJ

C

A

C

w

m

t

7C4

f0

Vi

L

f0

L

O

t

U

00

N

O

0

V1CU
C

m

y, 

CA

4O

v

NN

O

00Ol

OC.. 

dJL

t
a'' 

3

c

pC

O

C

1  

4, 

aJ

n

U

O

ll) 

p

N

O

U

O

O

N

Ot

C

N

3

3

0

0N

m

N

uv

C

tea

OE

a

E

a

o

WC

U

W

i11M

N

L

p

U

a) 

L

J

Q

a

Q

C

O

C

mS

L

MN

C

aJ

U

O

O

u

U

ate, 

C

aJ

v

tV

a) 4

U

md

f° 

CL

nC

Ua

O

aJ

roC= 

w-+ 

to

t41

t

C

mw

L

C

OC

a

M

O

ca

O

of

co

fa

p

lC

a) 

Z

C

a) 

O

7

Oa -

a

O

f0

O3

L

0

a) 

w

C

a) a

OL

ON

i

v

O

LJ

a

L

a

o

lC

W

Q

O

O

L1

O

CO

O

iCIO

a1

w

ON

a

O ('

j

L

a

a) 

QU

C

m

N

QJ

of

p

Cfa

O

y0to

aJE

O

C

JaJ

to

fa

CA

al

y

O

L

a) 

o

L

l6

C

O— U

to

O

Q} 

C

fa

Q

f0

O

Ly

O

n

L> 

N

a1t

C

O

LJ

n >, M +

J

Q

w

011

t

nQ! 

N

Q1

C

U

ON

inCS

fU6

C

n

C

U +

J

U

U= 

N

a) 

O

C

U

p0C

C

Q)

L7

U

41

p

m

v

C

Q

Q

C

EE

O

4' 

n

f6

O

C

O

Q

aLn_ 
41

N

om

Q

O

N

O

m

O

n

3W

QJ

E

U

nN

C Ln

N

Ln -

76

faN

NO

OL

O

UC = 

Q1i

aJ

O

f0

N

O

OU
S

p

C

O

pU

O

41

C7

aJ

Q) 

CLOO

0v
O

Q

0

tm

QJ

N

L

cu

0

of

V

c
C

w

U

m

m

LoL

t0

C

J

a

4J

Q

4

0

Ov

a) 

s

m

0: 

C

a1
CU

aJ

C

v

N

d

r"

d

N

a_' 

v

aJ

aJ

aJ' 

al

a

D

U

CCU G

O

O

m

OC

S

C

v

QJ

N

t0

C

W
4+ 

O

t

n

to

N

C

N

a) 

N

N

f0

N

N

N +' 

U

c 

w

w

w

C- 

w> 

w

41

w

w

t

w

E

0

6

O

C- 

oc

oc

N

0= 

L

OC

C

cc

U

oc

C

aJ

N
N

QJ

E

W

W

Qa

W

LJ

W

y

W

w

W

L

W

W

CO , 

NC

v

V

N

O

fa

L

L

cu

CL

3

b ° 

o

v

to

N "

Q

In

dLn
E

C

c0

E

U

U

In

mOC

fa

m

ON

Ov

a .

s

U

PL

YQJUUN1

v

C7

N

f6L

a



W















N

Y

ZZ

NU

io

U

X

Nv

aJ

Q1

L

f0

t6

N

Q

J

O

Q

xm

N

LO cv

N

Ol

W

w
O

m

00

76

O

O

y

CU

O+ 

4--' 

Z

ate+ 

C

W

O

LO

O

N

9x

C

O

C

t

O

L1

Q= 

p1

r -
I

O= 

M

bn

V

U

s

41

O

c

Ov

O_ 

O

00

tD

O

Q

V) 

p

L

C) 

O_

6

QE

s

n

Q

Lnm

I

Os

Ou

m 

3

a

v

o

C

u_ 

p

O

v

U

D

Cu0

p

O

s

U

s

0

N

L

co

wO

LnaJ

O

v= L

O

co

v

00

f0

L= O

p

J

Ln

c

a= 

Q- 

CJ

co

a) 

E

1

CL

LO

O

0

Q

m

Q

O

O

00

toM

s

of

a

O

s

O

O

L

s

U

N

c

C

X

C) 

UC) 

m> 

C) 

a

c0

O

C

Q

f

0

a

O -

O

r= 

C 

CD

N 

V

Z, 

L

f6

C

Z

U

M

O

of

Q

NU

O

O

C) 

fp
i

O

CJ

@2

v > 

ON

t

O

U

O

C) E= 

fC

co

Q- to

co

O

ALJN

N

O

C1

s

f0

f6

O

cc

c

O

O

Co

Cl) 

o0

H

N

o

M

co

H

CS

a 

X

i

m

U

L- 
m

3

p

t0i

CJ

W

t: 

U

m

CIO

U

O

LA

E

Occ
1} 

0

in

Q

E

O

Cu

E

CCO

O

Z

Ln

V)

cn

OZ

C

N

a

OU

C

LU

c+

o

OV' 

is

V

3

O

s

E

O

Ln

f6

0

N

t

t

N

m

f ° 

Z

CSA

O

O

OZ

O

O

U

y

i

YL

D

a

to

p

c

C

O 

o

M

0

O

Co

O

CJL- 
C

N

to

C7

Mt

co

W

N

J

O

s

CID
C
j

0

0

ieL

Q

caJ

O

O

1

C) 

a

C) 

a) 

cosN

v

O = 

E 

a

a, 

O

E

O

s
4• 

c

O

CJs

co '

a

L

O

O

sN

O

O

N

CID

to

N

C) 

L

O

N

OU

C

CJ

O

Nv

J

L

0

C10

f0

C7

m

U

O

f6

CID

yLn

0

a

E

OD

ON

bA

Q

C

O

v

m

m

O

a) 

a

a

O

O

E

CL

L3

L.

L

C1

f0

C) 

ZZ

E

a

i) 

s

C

C) 

O

U

tip
C) 

O

U

E

O

O

p

O

O

to

L

U

Q
a) 

E

O

41

N

0U

m

t0

L

U

N

o

O

a

O

U

L••+ 

lD

HQi

c) 

CD

N

O

m

0

N

v

0

LU

N

1tn

N

l"

I

C1A

L

N

U

4  

N

U

O

0

CU

E

O

0

O

c= 

O

p

N

uNt1

s
r' 

a) 

0

c=

o

f° 

c

O

o

wO

O

4- 

caoC

o

L

U

OD

m

io

O

4a

L

U= 

G

O

U

Q

V

d1

p

O

n

s

CJ

C) > 

3

O

C) 

C10
4 

CJ

InN
L

4- 

C) 

U

C) 

O

N

cn

W

O

v

Q

N

N

Q

U

O

p

v1

a, 

f0

s

J

a) 

Ln

O

Nau

O

a, 

u

s

N

W

d

C) 

J

M

O

O

O

C) 

C) 

O

C) 

C) 

C) 

C) 

Lai

Ucu

W

U

yl

O

Q

s

U

41

41

E

4- 

m

O

N

Z

U

n

Q

o

U

Ln

C: 

Q

to

Q

o

Q

o

Q

3

n

Ln

o

A

O

t

w

O

cc

LUw

m

ww

a) 

UJoC

LU

Q- 

LUoC

a) 

Lu  a: 

C

O- 

U

N

N

C) 

W

Q

2 '

a

W2

Q) 

W2

n

W2

LUZ

W

ofN

LU

0

2

M

N

OO

Q

t6

CIA

m

v

U> 

a) 

C) 

O

CD

o

Q

O

cu

r

CL

3

Ln

U

In

i

p

f0

U

m

OC

m

O

to

a

0

N

YNU

io

U

U
Nv

aJ

Q1

N

C

Q

J

O

xm

LO cvU

wO

O

O

y

O+ 

Z

ate+ 

c0

LO

O

U

9x

O- 

O

Cu

y

p1

M

bn

t

O

c

C) 

O

Q

L

L

Q

C

V

m 

s

a

C

Ln

p

U

D

Cu0

p

co

cu

0

a

c

t

M

O

00

4- 

J

NE

N

O

CJ

1

N

LO

0

Q

O

00

toM

Uv

of

E

v

s

O

L

s

QE

Ln

u

U
C) 

U

C) 

d = 

OCup
E

Q

E

C 

a

V

Z, 

f6

C

CZ

M

O

of

pw

CL
4- 

fpi

cc

O

z

@2

p

H

O

cn

cd

m

30

N

r

r•
I

O

O

Co

Cl) 

o0

H

N

o

m

M

co

H

CS

L7

X

i

m

U

L- 

m

3

p

t0i

CJ

W

t: 

U

m

CIO

O

E

Occ

Ov

Cu

E

w

O

Z

U- w

OZ

C

N

N

OU

C

LU

c+

o

OV' 

is

V

t

O

a0-, 

O

O

u

t

t

N

m

E

a

E

cit

c

O

o

OO0

O

ei

CJL- 

d

Z

ri

C7

Li. 

U

1i

N

I- 

N

YNUUNv

aJ

L7

N

m

Q

J



X

















Y













RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 64

RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION

FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY CARNELL L. BRITT

AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO

FOR MORE THAN 19 YEARS

WHEREAS, Carnell L. Britt retired on July 1, 2022 as a Firefighter with the City of
Goldsboro Fire Department with more than 19 years of service; and

WHEREAS, Carnell began his career on January 6, 2003 as a Firefighter with the City of
Goldsboro Fire Department and has served as such until his retirement; and

WHEREAS, Carnell has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who

has gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of
Goldsboro; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf
of themselves, City employees, and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to
Carnell L. Britt their deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City
over the years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina that: 

1. We express to Carnell our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity, and
good health in his future endeavors. 

2. This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of
Goldsboro, and shall be in full force and effect from and after this

11th

day of July, 
2022. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City Cl




	Agenda 07-11-22
	ws item c-1 - Goldsboro Floodprint_Project Timeline_2022.07.01
	ws item c-2 - CDDL_Goldsboro_MOU_2022-07-05
	ws item d-1 - Notes and Proposal Overview
	ws item d-2 - Legislative Flowchart
	9833ca78-2c78-4769-ae92-d32e1a66e74b.vsdx
	Page-1


	ws item d-3 - Quasi-Judicial Flowchart
	9833ca78-2c78-4769-ae92-d32e1a66e74b.vsdx
	Page-1


	ws item f - Public Comment Policy
	Item A  Minutes 06-20-22
	Item B - Annual Night Out 2022
	Item C - P&R Month Proclamation July 2022
	Item D - Jeffrey Beeken Retirement RES 2022-60
	Item E - Resdistricting
	Item F-1 - AAP
	Item F-2 - ANNUAL ACTION PLAN Public Hearing 7-11-2022 REVISED.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14

	Item F-2 - ANNUAL ACTION PLAN Public Hearing 7-11-2022
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10

	Item G - Z-14-22
	Item H - Z-16-22
	Item I - SU-6-22
	Item J - Fire Truck
	Item K - DLCM Street Closure
	Blank Page

	Item L - Heart of Fun Street Closure
	Agenda Memo the Ice Storm -heart of fun -Temporary Street Closure
	Application for the Heart of Fun

	Item M - Agenda 2022-07-11 Upset Bid Resolution 1004 Ivy (Johnson)_0
	Item N - Agenda 2022-07-11 Upset Bid 1005 Ivy St (Johnson)
	Item O - Agenda 2022-07-11 F3111 Fire Truck CPF Ordin
	Agenda Item F3111 Fire Trk Ordin 07-11-22
	ORDINANCE F3111 Fire Truck 07-11-22

	Item P - Agenda 2022-07-11 Operating Budget Amendment
	Agenda Memo Operating Amend 2022-07-11_0
	ORDINANCE FY23 Operating Amend 2022-07-11_0

	Item Q - Friends of Seymour
	Item R - Departmental Monthly Reports
	Monthly Departmental Reports - Cover Page
	TT June 2022 Report

	Item S - Z-9-22
	Item T - Z-10-22
	Item U - Z-11-22
	Item V - Z-12-22
	Item W - Z-13-22
	Item X - SU-4-22
	Item Y - SU-5-22
	Item Z - Carnell Britt Retirement RES
	Item-AA - Gene Aycock Resolution



